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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members of SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(IND AS) STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of SAIL REFRACTORY
COMPANY LIMITED (CIN: U14200T22011GO1017357) ("the Company"), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ('Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as

at March 31,2025, its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date"

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report" We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethibs issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit rnatters

Key audit natters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, lvere of most

significance in or,rr audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters

,u.r. adclressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in

forming oun opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Except for the matter describecl in the Basis of opiniom paragraph and the belor,v mentioned

points, there are no other key audit matters to communicate.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

1.. Raw materials procurernent and valuation The process of the raw material procurement is

through tenders from the open market. Competitive
pricing is done through auction process and cr:ntract

awarded. There are control checks in receipt, and

accounting of the materials in stores and issue thereof'
The valuation is based on weighted average basis.

2.Frovision and contingent liabilities relating to
ongoing litigations

The Company is subject to a number of legal,

regulatory and tax cases for which final otltcome

cannot be easily predicted and which could

potentially result in significant liabilities.

Management's disclosures with regards to
provisions and contingent liabilities-The

assessment of whether a liability is recognised as a

provision or disclosed as a contingent liability is

subjective and requires significant Management
judgement relating to ongoing litigation
presented in notes to accounts.

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited

to the following:

Obtained understanding of the process of

identification and measurement of provisions and

contingent liabilities relating to ongoing litigaticns
implemented by the Management, through various

discussions held with Company's legal and finance

personnel. lnspected the summary of litigation
matters and discussed key developments during the

year with the Company's Legal and Finance personnel.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in the

Company's standalone financial statements in

accordance with the applicable lndian Accounting

Standards.
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3. Frroperty, plant arld equipment and irltangible

assets (includimg capita! work in progress)

Determination of carrying v'alues

and their respective depreciation

and amortisation amounts of PPE,

lA and CWIP requires considerable
ma nageme nt jr"rdge me nt. These

include the decisions to capitalise

or expense costs, the annual asset

life review, the timeliness of the
capitalisation of assets and the use

of management's assumPtions and

estimates for the determination and

measurement of assets retired from
active use, in accordance with the
requirements of lnd AS 16 - ProPe rtY,

Flant and Equipment ('lnd AS 16') and

lnd AS 38 - lntangible Assets ('lnd AS

3g')"

Considering the significance of
amounts involved in the context of
the balance sheet of the Company and

the level of judgements and estimates

required, we consider this to be a key

audit matter.

Our audit procedures inclr.lded, but
were not limited to the following:

Obtained arr understanding of the
management's process of recording

the tnansactions pertaining to capital
expenditure incurred by the company

and evaluated the accounting policies

adopted by the company in accordance

with the requirements of lnd AS 16 and

lnd AS 38.

Evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of the controls
put in place by the management in
relation to the above process.

Tested the amounts capitalized
during the year, on a sample basis, by

inspecting supporting documents and

eval uating whether assets ca pitalized

satisfied the recognition criteria and

were recognized accurately in the
correct periods and with correct
amounts.

Reviewed the judgements made by

management in determination of
carrying values of the specified noncurrent

assets including tl're nature
of underlying costs capitalized,

determination of realizable value of
the assets retired from active use, the

appropriateness of useful lives applied

in the calculation of depreciation as

determined by technical assessment

by management and where required, and evaluation

of appropriateness of valuation of
CWIP balances based on the minufacturing processes.

Evaluated the appropriateness and

adequacy of the related disclosures in

the standalone financial statements
in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.
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Infornaatiom other than the financial staternents and auditors' report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other

information. The other infbrn'lation comprises the information inch,rded in the Board's

Report including Annexure to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements

and our auditor's repoft thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and r,ve do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider r,vhether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knor,vledge obtained dr"rring the

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the r,vork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information; lve are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Management's responsibili'by for the financial statements

The Company's board of directors are responsible forthe matters stated in section 134 (5)

of the Act with respect to the preparation of standalone financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the financial position, financial perforrnance and cash flows of the Company

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarcling of tl-re assets of tlie Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prr"rdent; and clesign,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

elfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation ancl presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair vielv

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company'r ubility to continue as a going concern, clisclos[ng. as applicable, matters related

to going concern and tising the going concern basis of accottnting unless management either

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The board of'directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Aucliton's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Ogr objectives are to obtain reasonable apsurance about r,vhether the financial statements as

a r,vhole are free from rnaterial misstatement, lvhether due to fraud or elror, and to issue a

\

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of'assuran



but is not a guarantee that an ar-rdit conclucted in accordance lvith SAs r.vill alr,vays dr'tect a

material misstatement r,vhen it exists. Misstatements can arise fiom fraud or error and are

considered material ii inclividually or in the aggregate, they cor"rld reasonably' be expected

to inflr-rence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As parl of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

n ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the frnancial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting fiom fraud is

higher than for one resulting fiom error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

n Obtain an understanding of internal controI relevant to the audit in order to design

ar-rdit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. lJnder section 1a3(3Xi) of
the Companies Act,2013, we are also responsible for expressing ollr opinion on

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls

" Evaluate the appropriateness of accor-rnting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

, Conclucle on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting ancl, based on the ar-rdit evidence obtair-red, r,vhether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosr-rres in

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify ottr opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our'

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

, Evaluate the overall presentation, structure. and content of the financial statelnents,

ipclucling the disclosures, and r,vhether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that acl,ieves fair presentation.

We communicate r,vith those charged with governance regarding, amon-e other thatters, the

plannecl scope and timing of the audit and significant ar"rdit findings, including atly

significant deficiencies in internal control that r,ve identify during our audit.

We atrso provide those charged r,vith governance w'ith a statement that r,ve have complied

with relevant ethical requirements re-eArding independence, and to comrutunicate r,vith them

all relationships and oth.r matters that may reasc,nably be thought to bear on our

independence, and r,vhere applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on other legal aind regulatory requirenaents

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Orcler, 2020 ("the Order"). issued

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of Section tr43 of the

Act, r,ve give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragnaph

3 and 4 of the order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, lve report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief r,vere necessary for the purposes of our audit"

ln our opinion proper books of accottnt as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as appears from oLlr examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement

clealt r.vith by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standarcls specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The provisions of section l6aQ) of the Act are not applicable to the Company

since tlre Company is a Government company as defined under section 2$5) of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of sucli controls, refer

to our separate Report in "Annexure 8".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accorclance with Rule 1 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, itt
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us;

i. The Company has discloseclthe impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its financial statements - ReferNote Nos. 46 &.47 inth6 financial

statements.

ii. The Cornpany did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for r,vhich there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts r,vhich \,vere reqr"rired to be transferred to the Investor

Edr-rcation and Protection Fund by the Cclmpany.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knor,vledge and

b)

c)

e)

s)

belief, no funds have. been advanced or loaned or invested (either from

borrowed funds or share premium or any other soLlrces or kind pf ,,"): #.+l *sr r?"4 \!funds)bythe.;;*,,5.;;.il.il;.,i.,"o.,,o,(s)or.*';;iiffi
'",)d**/.*
{t:?;L; l^*;*

iv.



V.

inch-rclin-e foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understancling.

lr,,hether recorded in r,vriting or otherr,vise, that the lntermediary shall,

r,r,,hether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner lvhatsoever: by or on behalf of tlie
Company ("ultimate Berreficiaries") or provide any guarantee.

secr-lrity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The managen-lent has represented that, to the best of its knor,vledge and

belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person

or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"). with the

understanding, whether recorded in lvriting or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Fundin_q Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultirnate Beneficiaries;
and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circurmstances, nothing has come to our notice that

has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)

and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The interim/final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended 31

March 2A25 is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.
Dividend has been declared and paid dr-rring the year by the Company -
Details as per Note No.50.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account usin-e accounting softr,vare r,vhich has a feature

of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the company with
effect from April | " 20)3, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 1 I (g)

of Companies (Audit ar-ld Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the

financial year ended March 31,2025.

"Based on oltr examination r,vhich included test checks, the corlpany has

used an accolrnting softr,vare for maintaining books of account which has a

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and tl-re same has operated

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance

of ar"rdit trail feature being tampered with."

1
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As reqr,rireci b1 section i-13(5) olthe Act. rre uire irr ",-\nrl.'xtrre Ill'
statement on tlie matters specified in tJre clirectiotls issueil lr)

Cornptroller ancl Ar,rditor General of Inclia itt respect ot'ttrre Conrpanl.

As per orLlr report of el'en clate

,a
the

Flace: Salem
Date : 11.05.2025
IIDIN: 2SztSS)) Bm5oyL +q8+

For KR Sarangapani and Co.
Chirrterecl Accoun tants
t'Rj\ 050018s

nry'-
FIith--va Vasuclevan
Partner
NI.l{o. 215511
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Annexure "A" to tnae nnr.lepanrlent Auclitor's Reporti'

(Itel.errecl to in paragraph 1 under'Report on other legal and regulatorr"recluirements'

secrion oi our repofi to the members o1'SAIL REFRACTORY CON'IPANY LII\{I'IED
oi"even ciate)

On the basis of the information amcl expltrnation givera to us during the cotlrse of our

;rudit, rve report that:

i. (a) (A) 'fhe compan.v has maintained proper recorcls shouittg iLrll particulars

inclucling cluantitatir,'e cletails ancl situation of its propert\ ^ plant and

eqLripment.

(B) The Corupanl'has not capitalizecl anf intangible assets in the books of the

Cor-npany,ancl accorclingll'. the requiremertt to report otr Clrtltse,ltiXa)(B) of

the Order is not applicable to the Cornpzrn,v'

(Lr) -l'he propertl. plant ancl ecliripment have been ph1-sical[1'verifiecl b-v the

management cluring the -v-ear and no material discrepancies \\'ere identif'ied on

such r"eri{lcatiou.

(c) Accorcling to the inlbrmation and explanations given b1'the tnana-sement" the

compan), cloes not holcl an1' sLrch itnmovable properl,v (other than pr:operties

nhere the Companl is the lessee and the lease agreements are clr:I1, execr-rted

i1 favour of the lessee) lhose title deeds are not held in ihe name ot- the

cotrpan)' except as tnentionecl belou'
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Nature of
p ro perty

Total Area
(Acres)

Gross
vatrue
rZl

Net
Value

value
({)

Tltle Deed Held
in Name of

Wh€th
er tit!e
deed

holder
isa

promo
ter,

di recto
r or
their

Perlod
held -
indicat

e

range,

where
approp
riate

Reason fer not
being held in

name o{ the Company

1 1 Free

Hold
Land

141 .994

{Salem)

5.83
Cr.

5.83
Cr.

Burn

Sta nd a rd

Company Lid.
( BSCL)

No Since

1"6.72.2

011

1)SRCL has paid an amount cf
T5.78 crore.c as siamp duty irr

Marr:h 25 to ihe State Go,;t for
initlatlng Regl!traticn proc-.ss

for narne trans{er froff BSCL to
S RCL

2 1.
Free l-1old

Land

21.8i
Kushai Nagar,

Karnataka

BSCL No Since

1.6.12..)

011

2) SRCL requested the Sub-Reglstrar, Kushal l'laga r, Mad l(eri, Karnataka vide letter SRCL,i Mlnes / 2021-22 / A41 daied 01 1 0.2021 for

change of cwnershlp in the name of SRCL. The SuLr-Registrar Office, Kushal Nagar repl ed vide letter dated 26.10.2021 statlng thar SRCL.

have 1.c contact / approach the Tahsr!darTalLrk office, Kushalnagara .

Since then we are following up with the TahslldarTa uk Office, Kusha nagara for transfer of lands in the name of 5RCL.

sRCl h3S appointed an advocate n Kushal i\agar for coordinating the name transfer process.

3 1 Lease

Hold

La nd

G.O.No.853-
Red hills

Magneslte anC

Dunite N/lines

15 38.67

Rs. 1

Only

Rs. 1/-
Only

BSCL No

Since

L6.L2.2
011

3) Subsequent to obtaining the
EC, the narne transfer of Le:se

wll be granted in the name of
SRCL,

4 1.
L€ase

Hold
La nd

G.O.No.51-
laghir
Magnesite
Mlnes

250.440
-246.2C3

4.237

4) The Govt. of Tamll Nadu has

talen o're'rl^e 24o.203 aoe: rl
Lease Hold Land. The balance

land available ls only 4.237

acres. The Govt. ofTamil Nadu

ha. rot ye- (or'.(:eci trr Lease

Hold Land area.

EJ 1 Lease

llold
Land

GONo-679

AS Jaghir
M agn es ite
Mines

93.450
-31 .016
s6.434

5) The Govt. of Tamil Nadu has

taken over the 37.012 acres of
Lease Hold Land. The ba ance

land avallable is only 5€i.4-?8

acres. The Govt. of Tamil Nadu

has not yet correcied the Lease

Ho'lcl Land area

e.l salrzul
1 ,i.i:;:iiAt,

Ea,r.#..;6
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(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

The companl has rrot rer"alued its Propertl. Plant ancl EclLripment clr.iring tl,e

-vear. l-herelire. the provisicx.rs of ClaLrse (iXd)oiparagraph S of the orcler are

not applicable to tl:e colrlpcrl\/.

-fhere are no proceeclings initiated or are pending against the Con-rpan1, tr.tr

holcling an,r, benatri property' ltnder the Prohibition of Benanti Pr:rper"t1'
-lransactions Act. 1988 anci rules macle thereunder.

T'he rrarragemeltt has condltctecl physicai leriflcatiotl ol inve ntorv at

reasonable intervals. ltt ortr opinion. the cor,erage and proceclure rlf'such

veri fi cation is appropriate.

Dr-iring the f-inancial ye-ar. the companl'has beell sanctioned uorking capital

limits of Rs.20 crores. fiom State bank of-lnclia, on the basis of Fixed Deposits

as collaleral.

Drrring the vear the Companl' has t-lot t-uade an1,' investtlent. provicled loans.

aclvances in the nature of loans. stoocl guarantee {.)r providecl secltritv to companies.

flrms. Lirnited l,iabititl'Partnerships or an)'other parties. Accordingly. the

rcquiremelt lo repofi on clause 3(iiiXa) to (e) olthe Order is not applicable to the

Cornpany.

T'he provision ol section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the con-ipanJ-.

According to infbrmation tind explanation givetr to us. the compan)' has not giren

apy loan or guarantee or made an1, investntent or provicled an1' security' covered

under sectioi't 186 of the Act.

I'he Companl'has neither acceptecl an1 deposits from public nor accepted an1'

anronnts lhich are deemed to be deposits rvithin the nreanirrg of Sections 7i to 76

oIthe Act and the Con-rparries (r\cceptance o1'Deposits) Rules" 201,1(as arr,ended).

Accorclingll.. the requirentent to report on clause 3(r,) olthe Order is not applicable

to the Cotr-rpan1'.

Maintenance olcost records has been specified fbr the business in lvhich.cotxpilti)'

is engagecl b-v the Central (ioverlinreirt under sutr-sectiott (l) of section 1'18 erl'the

Companies Act. 2013.We have broacllr, revie*ecl the books of accoultts maintained

b;- the compen\,' pursuant to the Rules nrade b1,' the cetltral (lovernment lor the

maintenance olcost records ancl are of the opinion that. Prirnatacie. the prescribed

accounts and recorcis have been r':'iacle ancl maintainecl" Horvever. rve l-lave trot macle

a detailed exairination o1'the ct-rst records ll'ith a vieri,to cletermirre nhether thel'

are acclrrate or contplete"

(a) Accorcling to the

amounts pay'able

income-tax. dutv

inlonralion and explan:rticlt'ts gir,'en to Lls. lto trnclispr-rted

in respect ol pr:ovident fLlnd. ernplol'ees" state insuran

I 11.

1V.

V.

vl.

vll.

r.lt- custom. goods and service tax. cess and olher m



Vln.

statutor\ clues uere outslandins. at the vear end. fbr a pcriod o1'n':ore than sir

lnonths fiont tlre date thel' becarne Pa)'able.

(b) Accorcling to the infbrntation anil explanations given to us. tl":ere are llo

statlltory dues referred in sub-claLLse (a) u.hich hare not been cleposited rvith

the appropriate aLrthorities ott accoLlnt ol anl' ciispLrte'

'fhe Cornpany, has not sr-tlrenclerecl or disclosecl an,r,' transaction" prel iot"tslv

unrecordecl in the books of itccoLints. iir the tax assesstr'rents rtnder the incottle T'ax

Act. 1961 as income dLrring the 1'ear. Accordingh'. the req,;ireurent ttl repitrt on

ciause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Cornpanl'.

The coprpanl, h;rs not defaultcd iu repa,v'.'n-rr'nt of loans or other borrouings or

in the pa1'rneut of interest thereon to anv lender.

(a) 'i[6e companv has not raised mone]'s by wai,'of initial pr-rblic o{'fer or l'urther

public ol'tbr includin_s debt instruments. J erm loans obtairred ltas been r"rtilized

f'or the purpose for rvhich satne has been obtained.

(b) fire Ciompanl has rrot made anl, pref-erential allotment or prir,'ate placenlent

o1'shares / fullr, or partialll' or optionalll' convertible debenttrres during thc

year uncler auciit and he'nce. the requireuent to reporl on clattse 3(xXb) of the

Orcler is not applicable ttl the Ciompany'.

(a) No fl"aLrcl b1'the C'ompanl or no fiaud on the Companl has been noticed or

reported during the 1-ear'.

(b) During the 1,'ear no repofi under sub-secticin (12) of section 143 of the

Con.ipanies Act has been f-iled [,r1,the auclitors in Form ADl'-'l as prescribecl

runder rr,rle li of Conrpanies (:\udit anci Ar:clitors) Ilitles. 201't r.vith the Central

Gc':l'ernment.

(c) As representer1 to us b1'the iranagement. there are ni) r.,histle blouer

coLt-iplaints t'eceivecl by' the Companl' dtrring tl,e 1'ear.

'1-he Ciourpan.v is r.ror aNiclhi company'.1'here{bre, the provisions o1'clattse 3(rii) ol'

the Orcler are not applicable to the Companl'ancl hence Ilot comn-lettted upott.

T'r.arrsactions rvirl, the relatecl parties are in compliartce rvith Sectioni; I 77 and I 88

of Courparries Act. 201 i rvhere applicable and tl're de tails ha.,'e beeu dlsclosecl in the

notes to the llnarrcial staternents. as reqr"tirecl b1'the applicable accoltnting standarcls.

'lhe cc,ntpanl, has an internal auclit s1'sterr corrlmensurate r','ilh the size and itature

of the business. I'he reports o1'the internal iuiditors fbr the period under auclit ivere

consiclereci bl the statlltiJr)' auclitor.

According to the infbrmation ancl expianations given by the manttgemellt attei auelit

tx.

x,

x1.

xll.

xltl.

xlv.

XV.

1?-

prg,,ceciures perfbnnecl b1,us. the Corlpanv hits not entered into an1'non-cash

g
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transacliotrs r.i,ith directors or itcrsolrs connected ',iith hint as referrecl to in Settiorr

lql t)f C'ornpanies Act. 201 i.
rl,i. (a) "l-he con-rpan1 is not reclLrired to be registereci ttnder section -15-1.{ of the

Reserve Banli of India Act. 193'1.

(b) The Companv has nr,rt conducted ani,' Non-llanli"irtg Financial or llor-isirrg

Irinance activitie s ri, ithout oL,taining a r,aiid C'ertiflcate of [legistration (['oll)

1'rotn the Reserve Bank of Intliaas perthe Resftl'e ISanJi olIndja Act. l9l'1"

(c) The Ciompanv is not a ( ore lnr,'estrnent Llornp:ur) as cleflned in tl:e regulations

rnacle bi,, Reserve Bank of India. Accorclinglv. the requirement to reporl on

clause 3(rvi) of the orcler: is not applicable lo the c'oirrpany.

(cl) As per the infbrrnation and erplauatiotts received. the -uroup cloe's not have

any CIC as Paft of the grotlp.

,rlii. The con-ipan,v has not incurrecl casli losses in current f-inancial rear and in tlie

i rnrnecl iatel y' p reced in g t'i rr iinc ial vea r respecti vell'.

rr,1ii. -fhere has been no resignation ol the statutorl' aLrditors clLiring the lear and

accorclingl;- r'equirentc.nt to report on Clause 3(rviii) o1-the Order is not applicable

to the ConlPany.

xi-x" On tlre basis of the finar-rcial ratios disclosed in Note No.51 to the Fillarrcial

Stateilents" ageing and expected clates of realization olfinancialassets and palment

of fllancial liabitities. other infbrn, ation accompanf ing tire flnancial statements. our

kporvleclge ol' the Boarcl ol Directol's and matlagentent plalls and based ol.t out

eramiitation of the eviclence sLrpporting the asstttt'tptions" nothing has come to our

attention. phicli callses us to believe that an)'materiai uttcertaintl'erists as otr the

date o1'the audit report that Conrpanv is not capahle c,lmee-tiirg its Iiabilities existing

at the clate of balance sheet as anci rvhen thel'fall clLre 
"r'ithin 

a periocl olotle 1'ear

tiom the baliince sheet clate. We. horveve r. state that liris is not an assllrallce .is to

the luture viabilitl'of the Conlpanl-"

We lirrther state that our retrrorting is basecl on the lacts r"rp to the date ol tlre audit

repopt apd ',re neither .,ive any grrarantee nor an)'asstlralrce that all liabilities falling

due lithip a period of one 1'ear fiorn the balance sheet clate. r."ill get discharged bv

the Ciornpanv as and rvhen thel' fa11 due.

\,\. The companv has ur:speut CSF. AmoLrnt to lhe tune ol I{s.0.4-5 Crores iirr tht:

F.Y.2024-2,i under sub-section(5)o1'sectior.r 1i5 olthe Contpanies Act. pttrsltant lir

the ongoiug projects and the san-ie lras been transferreclto special accollnt i.e "SRt't.

l,1pspelt C'SI{ AccoLrnt'' in cour;rliance rvith the pror,'isitttt of SLrb Section (6) oi

section 135 of the said Act..

13



\-\i. 'fhe 
conapanr'' has ttot macle

companv does not reqtlire to

the proriisions of Clause (r.xi)

C'ompany'.

As per our neport of even tlate

Flace: Salem
Date : 14.05.2025
UDIN: )sztg5 )t Brnsoy L 4g+

iuvestments in sirbsidiarv conlpillt\'. "l-hereibi:e" 
the

prepare consolic'iateci flltancial siatelnent. i"herefbre.

olparagraph i of, lire orcler are n01 applicahlc: to the

For KlL SarangaparLi :rnd Clo.

Ctriarterecl Acco un tants
I,RN 050018.5

,OY
Nith;,'a Vasudevan
Partner
N{.Nri.215511

t*i *r..,i[ltl -1,*'

$,ir'di;4,

1"t
d a'



4.t'i1\iEXtrRE - U TO:[HE

)Rcport on rtlhe Intern;nl Finlnciml Controls untl'er Clause (i) of Sub-srection 3 of Section

1-t3 of the Companies Act,2t0tr3 ("the Act")

\\'e haye aLrdited the internal financial controls over tirtancial reporting S.{IL

REFRACTOR.Y CONIPAIIY LIN'II'['ED ("-fhe Cornpany") as ol ii lvlarcli 1202-5 in

con junction n ith oLrr audit o1'the 1'lnancial statements of the Contpany fbr tire y car encled on

that date

NI:rnagement's Responsibilitl' for lnternal Financinl Controls

The C'on-rpanr.'s management is rcsponsihl* lor establishing anci r:tainlaini:rg internal

ig:alcial controls Lrased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established

by the Cornpan;-'considerirrg the esseniial components ol internal control stated in the

Gr-riclanceNote on Ar-rclit ollnlernal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting isstreci b1'

the Institgte of Chartered Accountants ol India (lCAl')" These responsibilities inclLrcle the

clesign. intpXementation ancl maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that u'ere

oiterating ef'f'ectively'fbr ensr.rring the orclerll'and elflcient conCttct ol'its business. inclr"rding

adherence to company's policies. the salegLrarding of its assets. the prevention aud cletectiolt

ol f;aucls anri errors. the accuracy' and cotnpleteness of tl,e accoutrting recorcls. ancl the

timely preparation of reliable flnancial informatiott as recluired under tlte Cornpanies Act^

2013.

AUDITOR'S RESI}ONSIBILITY

Our respousibility i5 to express an opitricln or: the Companl,'s ittternal llnancial controls over

f-ilancial repr66in* hased on ollr ar-rdit. \\'e cclndLtcted our audit ii-.l accorrlance lvith the

Cuidalce Note on Ar,rdit ol Internal Financial Controls ol'er Fitiancial Reporting (the'
"Guiclance Note") ar-rcl the Standarcls on AuclitirTg. issued b1' 1Cr\I and deemecl to be

prescribed under section I 43 ( l0) of the Companies A ct. 20 I 3 ^ to the extetlt applicable to an

agclit ol'internal financial controls^ both applicable to an aLrdit of InternaI I--inancizrl C]tlntrols

ancl both issr-red b1'the lnstilute o1'Charte red Accor-ttttltttts oilrrclia. 'T'hose Standarcls and the

Gr-riciance Note require that u,e cornph'nitlr ethical retluiretlents attcl plan anc'l perfbnn the

agclil to obtain reasonable asslu'ance abr:r"rt rvltetlter acleqttate itrternal financial controls over

flnancial reportine w'as established and maintainecl ancl if such controls operated eftctivell'
in all material respects.

Our agclit inrolves pertorming pr:ocedures tc obtain auclit er,'iclc-nce aboltt the adeqrracl of
ti're internal financial cr:'1";troi.u s1,'stem over financial repofling ancl their operating

efl'ectil.eness. Our a,-rclit of internal linancial controls over t-inancial repoming inclLrcled

obtaining an understanciirrg oi inttnral I'inancial contrills over llnanciai reportirrg. assessins

tfie risk that a material iveakness exists. ancltesting ancl evaluating the clesigrr anc-l operating

el'flectiveness of iniernal control based rir the assessecl risl". 
-fhe 

proceclures selectecl depend

on the auclitc,r''s judgment. inclucling the assessment o1 the risks of material misstatenrent ol

1q

tire f-inancial statentents. rvhether dtte to lraltd or ert'or

o'



\\'e breiier,e that the ar-lclit el'icieuce \\,e have obtaineci is siltficietrt arlcl appriipr"iate t* proi'ide

a basis fltr our auciit cL.iniitlt on the Companl,'s internal l'inancial controis svsterl over

flnancial reportinr:.

}y[elming of Internal Financin] Coutrols or er Financitrl Reporting

A coiupan1,'s interr:al tlnancial control oler t-inaucial reportins is a process designc-il to

pr.olicle reasonable assLrrilnce regarcling the- rc'liabilitl' of t-inanciaI reporline anci the

preparatiolt of financial statements lor external purposes in accr:,rtlatrce lrith -uenerallv
accepted accounting principles. A courpanl"s internal tln:rncial control over financial

repofii1lg inclucles those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance of
rect.rrcls that. in reasonable cletail. accurateil' and lairly reflect the transactions ancl

rlisprositions of the assets o1'the compan)'i 12) provicle reasonable assllrance that trans0ctiolls

are recorciecl as necessar),to permit preparatiort ol'finar,cial statemerlts in accordance n'illi
uenerai[l,accepted accouniing principles. anclthat receipts and expenditures of'the compan]

are being macle on[y,in accord:rnce ivitl-r ar-rlhorisations o1'n"ianasement and directtlrs of"the

c{Jutpaltl,: and (3) provicle reasonable assllral"}ce regarding prevention or timell detection ol
runauthorised accluisitiou. use. oi disposition of the corlpartl"s assets that could have a

material eft"ect on the firlancial stiltelrents"

Inherent f,,imitations of Internal Financial Controls over Fitrancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations oi intemal financial cotttrols over financial reporting.

inclLtding the possibility'of collLrsion or improper managelxetrt overricle olcontrols. nlaterial

misstatentepts due to error or fi'aLrd ma-v occut atrd not be cletected. Also. projections olan,v

er,,alnation of the internal financial controls over flnatrcial reporliirg to tuture periods are

subject to the risk that the internal finarncial controI over t'inrtieial reportirrg tltal"become

inaclequate because ol chan-ses in conditions. or that the degree of corr"rpiiance *ith the

policies or proceclures nlaY deteriorate.

0pinion
Ip our opir-tion. tlie Cornpan,-'has. in all tnater"ial respects. an aclequate internal fiirarlcial

citntrols sl'slelt-l over financial reporting atrd such internal financial colltrols over flnancial

reporting rvere operating eflectivelv as at 3 I iv-larch 2025. based on the internal control over

1-rnancial r:eporting criteria estiiblisheri b1 the Companl' considering the essential

contponents of internal control statecl in tlie Giridance Note on ,Atidit of Internal Financial

flontrols Over Finaiicial Rl-porting issued bl,tire Institr-rte of Clu-rrtered Accountants of India.

As per our report of even date

For KR Sarnngapani anrn Co.
Chartered Ac,countants
FRN Osi)OlES

Place: Salem
Date : 14.05.2025
LIDIN: "Sut S5 rl &nSoy r*n*

IYithya Vasudevan
Partner
M.No.215511

rE
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Amnexure-C to the Inrlepende,mt Autlitor's fi.eport

Birections urrdrer section 143{5) of Companies Act 20L3

QUESTIOINS Al-, DITCIR'5 COMIl,4 ENTS

l"

UJhether the company has system in place to process all the

acccluntlng transactions through lT system?, lf yes, the

imptlcattons of processing of accounting transactions outside lT

systems on the integrity of the accounts along r,rrith the

financial implications, if any, may be stated'

Yes the company has a system in place to
process a!l the accounting transactions

through lT system.

Based on our audit on test basis, wherever

the accounting transactions based on

vvorl<ings outside the lT system, no

instances of lack of integrity of accounts

and no financial implications has been

noted/reported

2
Whether there is an'y' restructuring of an existing loan or cases

of Waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a

lencier to the company due to the company's inability to replay

the loan? lf yes, the financial impact may be stated. Whether

such cases are properiy accounted for? (ln case, lender is a

Government company, then this dlrection is also applicable for

statutory auditor of the lender company) Not applicable to the compan'/

3 Whether funds(G ra nts/Subsidy, etc.,) received/receivable for

specific schemes from central/State Govt or its agencies were

properly accounted forl urtilized as per its terms and

conditions? List the cases of cleviation Not applicable to the company

For K.R. SARANGAPANT & CO.
CHARTEHEDACCOUNTANTS'

FRN:0500185
Partner

d.,.to .Q.lSr l
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.S,,\[L [i.E} R.ACTORY CONIPAT'iY LIS,IITED, SNIENI

Bnlnni:e Sleeet ts at 31st NIarch. 2025
l.\ll rlrorrnt\ ir { ( rorrs. unless othenr ise st:rted)

e-ffiffi,ffi$h,
&wffiffi&mffilm&ffim

Particulars Note
No.

,\s at .) lst
l\larr:h. 2025

.\s nt 3l st
\tarch" 2tl2j

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Propetty" Plant and Equipment
(b) Right of use assets

(c) Other Intangible assets

(d) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Loans
(iil) Other hnancial assets

(e) Defened tax assets (net)
(f) Non Current tax assets (net)
(g) Other non-curent assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iil) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

4

1a

5

6

7

8

21

9

10

1l

12

13 (i)

1 3 (ii)

l4
15

38.47

0.02

o.oz
0.72
0.19
0.79
1.03

80"15

52.79

5.94
55.90

0.45
1.01

18.48

0.02
0.0r2

0.07
0.72

0.08
6"24

75"87

46.65

55.65

7 5.70
0.41
1"27

TOTAL ASSETS 237.53 281.18

riQurT\ AND L,IABILIl'lES
Equity
(a) F-qLriti sharc capital
(b) Otirer eciuitl'

Liabilities
\on-cu rrent liabilities
( a) Financial L.iabilities

(i) l.case liabilitl'
(ii) l'rade pafables
( iii ) Oth!r linancial liabilitics

(b) PLor isions
(c) Dclerred tar liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
{a) Irinanciai Liabilitie s

( i) Llorrou ings
(ii) Lcirse liabilitl
(iii) Tracle pal ables
( ir ) Othcr llnlurcial I iiibilitics

(b) Otlrer: crrrrenl liabilities
(c) Pror isions
(d)Current tar liabilities (net)

16

l7

18

19

20

21

22

ll

ti
t6
27

0. r0
r5+.22

5.93
.]rl.15

ll.8r

0.0 t

r."14

-t./J
0.28

3.8 r

0. 10

182.79

0.01

6.07
39.47
13.65

0.1 5

7.65
0.02

26.39
0.78

3 "74
0.36

TOTAL EOUITY & LIABILITI{S 231.53 281.18

Nlareriai i\ccounting Poiicres

I'L.ICE : S-{LE}I
D..tTE : t'1.05.21125

1-3

(DrI-IP r\t \t.\R ]lllIlR.\) {PR.\\-EE\ }I(I.\}l) (}rl{.\tr}1}t t{t'}1.\R sARI\-\R)
EIICETI1ADIRECTOIT&COO DIRECTOR

(DIN: 085.107.37)

As ;rer our re}*at ofelen date
for KR S.{R{:\G-{P.4.II & CO.

CtrlARTE RED .,I.C{]OI]NTA]iTSt'W
{}irTrrl-A triASLIDE}iA}{)
PART\ER, 1,I.1i0.2 15511,

FrRlr f it]-050818s

UDro : 2Sn I E5; tr Bm s Dl l4qA+

I}IRE('T{.}E.
{I}I-\ : tl90-151}t}tl)

1s. srl\ lrdl lir f l \R-\5)

The accompanying notes are an integral part olthese standalbne financial statem

l;":fiil$har'r'(he*"K,

AT



5AI t R.EITRACTOR.Y CO&XFANY LII\"[{TED, Sa[,erur

Stilternemt of Frofit anrX Loss for the period eradern 3Xsf h'Iarch,2025
(AlI ainount.s iu T Irores, unl,ess othenlis,e stated) d$ffiffiM

MWmlMMMM&88ffiffi

Particulars Note
No.

}'eair end ed

llst llarch.2025
Yean enc!ed

Slst i\larch,202.l

Income
Relerlue fiorn operations

Other Inconre
Total -[ncom,e

Erpenses
('os1 oI r'naierials consr-rtned

Changes iir inventories of tlnished goocls. uork it.t progress

Ernplo,r ee benetits expense

Finance costs

Deplccirl i'rn lrrd lrr nortisilt iorr e\pettse
Other espenses

Total erpenses
Profit/Loss (-) before tax
T:rx erpense
Current tar
Def'erred tax
Total tar e\pense
Profit/Loss (-) for the year

Other comprehensive incorn e

(i) Items that w'illnot be reclassifieclto prolit and loss

Remeasurernent o1' deflnecl bene fi t plans

{ii) Income tax relatirrg to items that nillnot be reclassified

to proflt or loss
Other Comprehensilc Income/Loss (-) for the 1'c'lr

2B

29

30
31

)L

JJ

4

-)+

r68.55
6.78

t64, I -)

10.8'/
x7s.33 t75.02

98.i 7

(i.3 8)

I 6.41

0"40

1.11

39.01

90.42

1 1 .8s)
17.80

0.0-5

0.92
40.1 8

152.12 147.52
23.21

6.11
(0.83l

21.50

7.25
0.08

s.34 t.))
17.87 20.t7

(0.2'1.

0.06

(0.01'

(0. r B' (0.02'

Total Cornprehensive Incorne/Loss G) for the vear t7.69 20.|s

N{aterial Acct'r"rnting Poiic ies 1-l
The accompanl,'ing notes are an integral pan of the,sr'stairclalotte f-rnancial statelnellts,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

'tu*".^uq{

(;]I{FLt-\} E_\[t'1'TItE niRI-CT0R & t'Ot)
{PR.\1'EEN 5IG1}I)

NIRECTOR

{Dif : 0S510i37}

N
(S. SEVfHitrhI I\LIR{T)

f,L-\aE : sl"tt.ltt
DITE : 1{.05,1015

(\
\\ //->/

(PI{.ABIR Kai}I.{X. S.{.RIL{R)

I}IRECTOR

{BIl{: 03045}0{}}

As per *ur report tf evtn daie

for KR SAELdNGA.PASI.t CO-

CHARTSR,{D ACCGUNT,TITS

"Nryy
{IiITHYA VASUDr}',.$i}
FAR.TITR. X.li0.z1 551 r

FIILII N0.0silr]1$S

UD t^t : Lg, 21ggl I Bm$o/a ffi ts+

d\\rt'
l'*t*t



5,{I[- ldEFRdC]-Ottl' COhlPANY L-tr]InTED, Salern
( :rsh [.]ot St;rluncnr for thr: periotl endttl Jlst \larr:h lt)25

i.lll unnutns in { ilrrres, uliess otltrr\\'ite stil!d)
I':trtic ulrtrs 3lst \larrh l()25 Jist \lnrrh l{)21

('ash llorr i'rorn oprrnting ircti\ itics

\et prollt hrfhl"c ter
.\djustments I'or:

Dcprcciiiliorr and airtortisatiott

Pror isiiin lir dLrrrbtlul tracle rccciyal-'les

(Llain), Loss on iile offixccl asscrts (net)

Prrrr isiorr tbr slir\\ nrovins and obsttlute ittt'enton

hrterest inc0nlc

Prolisions lbr adlances

Operating tlsh flort's belbre l'orNiilg capitnl chrtngcs

f.h;rnges in opcr:rting lsstts and liabilities
(lncrea-sa),'Decreasc in trade receivebles

I i ncr Jlri ) I )eirerr.c itt inr ttrlorie-

{ hrcrease)il)ecreasc in othet short tert11 llnancial asscts

l lncreasei,'Decrease in other assr-ts

lncrease,( Decrease i in trade palables

Irr.rqlt's ll )cer(.1.1) iil lunt leilll,.1"ri5i,'tr.
Irrerir:c ' 

I )!ir. rs. r ir .ltort tet ttt pr,,r i:i,'rt.
lncreaser'( l)ecrease) in other linancit] liabilities

increaser'1 Decrease) in other liabiljties
(lash llon generltcd fi'om opcrltions

Inconre ta\es paid lnet oiref'uncls)

\ct c:rsh Ilox lionr tiperating tctivirics

Cash llol l-rom invcsting actilitics
PLrrchase or consiructit'rr of Properry.plant irncl cquipnlenl

13an1i cleposrls (having origirral n-taturit) ol'nlorc than threc nloliths) (n.l)

Intcrest received

\rl ritslr qcnerillcd Irunr inr erting ;tetir itie.

( :rsh llorr from finlncin;1 :1cti\ ilic\
I I'rocecds lionr borrouings

I R.,r.,, ,,.t,, ul l,,ltt-tcn)') horr,'rr tl,L.

I Dir rdcr.l p.ritl

| 
\ct c:r.lr userl br linrrrrcirrx aclir ilirs

l \,'t c,,*h ilrcre:r.c in ritsh :tntl tarlt crlttir;tlcnl. (.\-B-( l

I

l

| 
( irsl: rrr.l er.lt crlrtir:tlettt. al lltJ h('1i'ttlitlr ('l lll' \\'ilI

| ( rr-lr .rrr.L ux\l) c(rtri\flleilt\.rt the ett.l,,fllte rcrtt
I

I \lrrr rnrent in c:rslt halrtnce

I

I

lRccorrrili;rtion ofcash:rnd cash cqttivalents as percash llorv stltenlent

I Ca'h an.l cush crlrrirrlents ls per above cotrprise ofthc Iblloriing

I Cash un hand

I or,r,r,,*r r ith h:rnks

| .. rn L-rrrelrT rLcr)lrats
l

J u,,.lep,,.it. rrirltr,ri':irrrrl ilrrlrl,in ttnioJ [rl,.rt.]t.

23.21

1.11

0.32

0.07
(5.e6)
0. 13

27.50

0.92

0.1 7

( 0.E9 )

0.60

i r0.07)
lo 11\

r 8.88 18.01

((r.ll)
(4.2ti )

(0.0-+ )

I i7

5.3 0
( 1.8+)
().07

(10.11)

{tt._i0 )

(19.16r

\27.24)
(). I t)

( 3..19 )

(0.07 )

0.63
1.i+
6.87
.+.82

(2.09
(6.0-l

(18.19)
(6.70 )

(8.13 (24.8e)

(21.081

1 9.80
5.96

(0.44)
26.34
i0.07

4.68 35.97

i.r6.26) ( 6.0E )

(46.26) (6.08)
(19.71\ s.00

5-i.65
5.91

50.65
55.65

(19.71' s.00

4.5 0

1.4-1

0.5 u

55.07
5.9r1 55.65

IXECT'TI\T DIIUCI']R "* CO{} DIREf,'['T)R
{Dl\: il3-<-{t)73?1

rrlf of thr

{ PRABIR KL }I.{}1 S,IRL\II)
DiRE{:-1OR

(DIN; ti90J59001

(s.s

PL{CE : S.\I.E\tr
D,rTE : !{.05.11}25

.-ls perlur repol't of e1.ell {ltte
fur (R S-{R{I,]G-{.P.\II & ClO.

CFIARTERtrD ..\CCOI.} T-{\ TS
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SAII. REFruACT,OF{}' CONXPAh{V LmtlTtrD, Salerxl
Srari:rneu1 of change s in cqult'r. firr thc period tnded 31st \Iarch, 2025

( \ll .n!oLrnts in ? ( rures. un!ess lithenr ise stnted)

mSMlW,arrl'

dwq#ru
m&iffimffiffiffi&iEffiilffi

Particuhrs
Eallncc ls;tt lst

April. 202'1

Changes in rqnitr
sharc caoitel

B,latncc ;rs at 3lst
tv'larch, 3025

Equitv shares l.ith r-oting riqhts 0.10 0.10

Equitr sharcs l,ithout r-oting rights
'f'otal 0.10 0.10

Bahnce :r-s at 1st
April. 2023

Chrrnges iu erluitr
share crpital

B:rlance 1ls at Jlst
NIrrcir, 202:1

Equih sharcs s.ith rotinq rights 0.10 0.10

IJquifi' shres rvithout r-oring rights
'Iotirl 0.10 0.10

Other
Rcstrvcs and Surplus

Capitrl Resen'e
Securities
Prenirtrn

Gcneral
llcscn c

Bonrl
Rcdcnption

lleserr e

llctained
Earnings

'I otal

Balance as at 1st April, 2024

Profit/Qoss) fot thc,vear

C)ther comprehcnsive income/ (oss) fot the,veat

43.10 19.60 71.9.19

77.87

(0.1 8)

1.82.79

77.81

(0.18)

-Iotal comprehcnsir.e income/ (klss) frrr the v-eill

f iquitr iln iLlr:rrd .t J irterrn cll. iclcnd

( )thers 1.79

17.69

(16.26)

(1.79)

17.69

(.46.26')

Balance as at 31-st Nlarch, 2025 .13.70 21.39 89.li 151.22

Balance as at 1st April, 2023

Profit/(oss) for the vear

Other comprehelsire income/ (oss) for the year

43.70 17.58 707.44

20.77
(0.02'

768.72

20.77

r0.02)

Total corrpreliensitc incrime/ (loss) for the y-car

i:tluin rliiidctrl & lnlcdn di. itlcnd

Othcrs 2.02

20.1.5

(,.r.)3_l

( 2.011

20.L5

(6.08)

Balance as at 3lst Nlarch,202.1 ,13.70 19.60 119.'19 182.;-9

T'hc accornparving notes ate an irtcgtal pert ot- these finalcial statemeflts.

For nnd on 
|ahalf 

of the Board of Direclors

W \dJt-, l*'*['(1 V
(s. sEliTI#L ryxfinlrl Frr,#-KUn,L{RlirsHL,t} {PR,L1EENIlGAftIi {PL{BIE KIUAA S..!.RKAR)

G]'I{F.tA) ErEC[Tr\ry DrRE{TfiE & C0il I}IRICTCIR DIRECTOR.

{DI5: flfl51073i} ptt[: il9il{-s$0tlJ
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DATI :1j.ll5.2ll:5
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Sal'em

t" Corporate antl General Infornaation
S,qti_ Refiactorv Companl Limited {'"the C-ompiinl-")r,las incorpuiated on 23 Ar,rgr"rst 1011.

On lo i;ecember 201i. the Companv acLlLlil'ed Salem refiactorl works olBum Standarcl

Compiinl Limiteil ('BSCL") as patt of the t-inancial restructuring of IISCL approved b5 lht-

c:rhjnet cextmittee olEconomic Allairs lCor-er..ittncnt of Inclia). Ihe Companl is engaged

in proclr_rction gl calcined magnesite. mag-carb bricks ancl dunite. ['he Companl. is having

production fircilitl,at Salem. TamilNadr-i. The registered olIce o1'the Companf i-s situalec'l

at Saletl steel plant. Salem TamilNadu- India'

fhese linancial statements were ilppror,ed b1. the Board of Directors of the company in

their meeting helcl on 14tl' N{a1'2025.

7. Ilasis of Prepar:rtion

2.1 Statement of ComPliance
l he fjnalcial statenents of the Companv have been preparecl on accrual basis of accounting

in accordance r.vith the inclian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section

1j3 gf Companies Act. 20i3. as notilled under the Cornpanies (lndian Accor'rnting

Sta,darcls) Rules.2015 (as ameirdecl). ancl other accounting principles generally accepted

in India. The Compan,v has urnitbrmll applied the accottnting policies during the periods

presented.

2.2 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except tbr the tbllorving

assets and liabilities which have been measured at tair value:

o certain frnancial assets and liabilities rvhich are classified as fair value through

profit ancl loss or f-air vaiue through other cotnprehensive income:

o assets helc1for s1le. at the lon.er of the carn'ing alTlotlltts anclt'air r''altie less cost to

sel l:

. defined beneflt plans and plan assets.

2"3 Functional antl Presentation Currencv
l'he Financial Statements have been presented iir Indian Rupees (t). \\'hich is the

Ciompan5,'s functional currencv. A11 financial inlbrmatiou presentecl in { have been

rounded off to the nearest tr,vo decimals oICrore unless othen'vise stated.

2.4 Use of Estimates and Nlanagement Jrtdgement
In preparing the tinancial statements in conformitl"'vith Ciompanv's A.ccounting Policies"

n"runug.r1.nt is reqr-rired to make estimates and assumptions that aflect reported amounts o1

assets and liabilities antJ the clisclosure of contingent liabilities as a1the date olthe financial

statements, the amounts ol revenne ancl expenses during the reported period and notes tcr

the Financial Statements. Actr:al results crtuld cliftet fiom those estimates. Anv revisicin tcr

sr-rch estimates is lecosnisecl in the period in r,vhich the same is determinecl.

2.5 Current versus Non-current classification
'I'he Compan\ presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet hasec'l

current classiflcation. An asset is classif-ied as cuffent rvhen i1 is:

on curent/ non-

v

the Year en

1y



SAIL REFP,ACTORY CO,\{PAI'\Y LINIITED, Snlem

n Erpecteci to be realised or intencled to sold or conslllred in noruial operatir-ig cr cle

o llelcl primarill' fbr the purpose oltrading
. F_.rpectecl to be realisecl rvitirin trvelve months afiel the l'eporting period- or

o Cash or cash equir alent unless restricted tiom being exchangecl or usc'c1 tcr seitlt-- .l

lial-..,i1it1' tbr at least tr,r,elve months afier the reportin*e periocl

All other assets are classitied as non-current'

A liability' is classifred as cllrrent r'r'hen:

o it is expected to be settlecl in normal operating c1'cle

o It is held primaril,v tbr the purpose of trading

. [t is due to be settled r.r.ithin trvelve months afier the reporting period. or

n'l'here is no unconditional right to def-er the settlement of the liabilit.v tirr at least t$'elve

months afier the rePorting Period

All other liabilities are classit-red as non-current'

The opelating c-u-cle is the time betr,veen the acquisition of asset*s ior processing and their

realisition in'cash and cash equivalents. Delenedtax assets and liabilities are classitied

as non-curent assets ancl liabilities.

3 NIA'IERIAL ACCOUI{TTNG POLICIES

A summarv of the nLaterial accounting policies applied in the preparation o1'tlie f"rnancial

statenlents is given belou. These accounting policies have been applied consistentl,v to all

the periocls presented in the filancial statetnents'

3.1 Propert-l', Plant and Equipment

3.1.1 Recognition antl Nleasurement

Tangible Assets
prop-ert1,, plant and equipment held tbr nse in the prociuction oriand suppl1' of goods or

=..ii..i. or fbr administlatire purposes. are stated in the balance sheet at cost. less an1'

sr,rbsequent accumulated clepreciation and impairment Lrsses. 
-I'ire initial cost at cash price

equil,alence of property-. plant and eqnipment acclr:irecl comprises its purchase price.

inclLrding impori cluties anci non-refr-rnclable pulchase taxes" an1' directly attribr-rtable costs

of bringing ihe assets to its u,orking condition and location and presenf value of an1'

obligatorl.tecommissioning costs fbr its intended r:se. Plant and N{achinen' also inclr"rde

assets held under flnance leelse.

In case of self'-constrlrcted assets. cost inciudes the costs of all materials used in

constniction. direct laborir. allocation of overheads, directll' attributable bort'ou.ing costs

including trial run expenses (net o1'revenue)

Spares having usetil lit-e olmore than one vear and having value of Rs. 10 lakhs or mr:re

in each case. are capitalisecl under the respective heacls as and r.r'hen available fbr use.

Proflt or loss arising on the disposal of propert,v. plant and ecl"lipment is

Statement of Prof-lt and Loss. p%
s/ salrh,l \g'

{

recognised



SAXL REFLACTORY COtutPAl{Y LI\{ITED, Salent

3.1.2 Subsequent Cost
Sr-ibsecl-rent expenditure is recosnised as an increase in the carning atnount oithe asset or

recognisc-cl as a separllte asset. as appropriate. onl1' w'hen it is prob;rble that tirture L'conomic

benetlts clerirecl fi'orr the cost inclrned ivill tlor,i 1.o the Companl"antl the ci-rs1 of the item

c3n be measured reliabl1.. The carn'in(r amount o1'teplaced item (s) is derecognisetl. .

Anl.repriit gf,Rs. 50 lakhs or more olpropert,v. plant and ecltiipt-t1ent are recognised in the

carrl.ing amollnt of-the item if it is probable tirat the firtule econouic beneijts of the costs

incitrrecl u.il1 flor,i to ti-re Companl'. The carrl-in-q amolint of the replaced item (s) is

derecognised.

3.1.3 Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible assets and inr,estment propertf is provicleil on straight line

*.thod" consiclering residr-ral r.'alue of 57r, of tl'ie cost of tiie asset. over the r:setirl lives of
the assets. as specitied in Schedule I1of the Companies Act" 2013 ercept in case o1'Factorl'

BLrildings. Plant and N4achiner'.v. Water Sr-rppl1'& Serverage and Railwa,v Lines & Sidings

ancl components thereof. r,vhere usefiil 1it'e is determinecl by technical erperts" I he useful

lif-e ass'Lrrned by'the technical erperts is as under:

For these classes of assets. based on technical evair-ration carried or-rt b1'- exiernal technical

experts. the Companl'belier.es that the usefll lives as given above best represenl the period

or,-er rvhich Companl. expects to Llse these assets. Hence. the r.rsefill lives fbr these assets

are ditl-erent tiom the usefui lives as prescribed linder Part C of Schetiule I1 of tlie
Companies Act 201i.

The estirnated r-rseful lives and residuai values of depr"eciable/ atnortisable assets 'are

revierved at each vear end. rvith the eff'ect of an1' chan-ses in estirnate accounted tbr on a

prospective basis.

Where the iristorical cost ol a clepreciable asset rtndergoes a change, the depreciation on

the revised unamortisecl <lepreciable amount is provided over tlte residr-ral usefLl lil'e of the

asset. Depreciation on acldition/ deletion during tire 1'ear is provided on pro-rata basis r'vith

ref-erence to the month of acidition/ cleletion. Assets costing up to Rs. ,5000/- are fulli,'

depreciated in the 1'ear in rvhich the,v are put to use'

Depreciation on capital spares is pror,ided ovel the r-rsetul life of the spare or remaining

useful life of the mother asset. as reiissessecl" rvhichever is ior'ver.

3.2 Intangible assets

3.2.1 Recognition ancl measurernent

Asset
Factorl' Buildings
Piant and N'Iachiner-v

Water Suppll' & Seu'erage

Railwav Lines & Sidi

Nlining Rights
Mining Rights are treated as Intangible Assets

on fhe basis of annual prodr,rction to the total

Estimatecl useful life (in
35 to.l0
10 to 40
25 to 40

35 to 40

and all related costs thereof are amortised
estimated mineabie reserves. [n case
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPA!{Y LIMITED, Salem

minin-E rights are not renen'ed. the balance related cost \\ill be clrareed to rerenlte in the

year 01'decision of non- reneu'al.

Acclr-risition Cost i.e. cost associated rvith acqr-risition of licer::ses" anc'l rights to espltlre

inclr-rding relatecl professional l-ees. pa1-ment toi.vards statntorr. Ibrestrr clearances- as ;lncl

lrhen incr:rrecl. are treated as acldition to the Mining Rights.

Other Intangible Assets

Sotlrvar.e r.vhich is not an integral part of related harcl',vare. is treatecl as intangihle assr:t

ancl amortisecl over aperiod of t-ir.e vears or its licence periorl. ri'hicherer is less"

Research and cleveloPment
De-,elopment expendiir-re is capitalisecl onl1.if it can be measured reliabll' and the related

asset and process 1re identitiatle and controlled bl the Conrpanl. Research ancl other

derelopment expenditure is recognised as revenlte expenclitr-Lre as and ',vhen incurred.

3.2.2 Subsequent Cost
Subsec,-rent erpenditr-rre is capitalised on1.v rvhen it incretises the luture economic benef-rts

embodied in the specific asset to rvl-rich it relates. Al1 other expenditr-rre is recognised in

the Statement of Protlt and Loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

thi Company revielvs the carrf ing amount of its assets on each Balance Sheet date for the

pl*-pose of aicertaining impainlent inclicators if any, b,v considering assets of entire one

plant as Cash Gelerating Lrnit (CGL.| ). If an-v sLrch indication exists. the assets' recoverable

amollrt is estimated. ai hi-sher of the Net Selling Price and the Valr"ie in Use" An

irnpairment loss is recogniied r,rhenever the carrr,'ing amortnt of an asset exceeds its

recovelable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequentll'reverses. the can,ving amollnt of the asset (or cash-

generating,rnlty is increased to the rer.'ised estimtlte of its recoverable amount- so that the

i-n.r.ur.C.arr-ving amount does not exceed the carr-ving atnount that rvould have been

determinecl had no impairment loss been recognised tbr the asset (or cash-generating r'rnit)

in prior years. A r-el'erial of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement

of Proflt anci Loss.

Stripping Cost
ff-,e si.ipiing cost incurred during the production phase of a si:rthce mine is recognised as

an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms ol improved access to ore in.fitture periods

and folloiving criteria are met:

o It is probable that the hrture economic beneflts (impror.'ed access to an ore bod"v)

assoclated r,vith the stripping activitv $111 flow to the entitl'.

o 'fhe entit.v can identif\' the component of an ore bod;- tbr uhich access has been

irnproved. and

o The costs relating to the inrpror ed access to that component can be measured reliabll'.

'fhe expenditr-rre. r,vhich cannot be specificalll iclentitiecl to

ore is charged to revenue. based on stripping ratio as per 5

except collieries rvhich is based on proiect report'

3.4

hal'e been incr,rreci to access

-vear mining plan ior mines.

a'
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3.5 Borroxing costs

Bon:ori,ing costs directll, attribLrtable to the acqLrisition or constmction 01'iL clualitling

;tssel. \\l-Iich takes substantial period of time. are capitalised as a part ot'the r:ost of that

asset. cluring the periocl of time that is necessal')' to complete and preparc' thc assel t'trr its

intended use.

T he Cornpanl. consiciers a perioci ct'tlvelr e months or more as a substatrtial period ol time"

"Iransaction costs in respect of long-term borrouings are am,:rtised over the tenor of'

respectir, e loans using eftectir.e interest method. O-ther borror,ving costs are recognised in

the Statement of Proflt & Loss in the period in ri,hicli these are incurred.

lnventories
Ra*,materials. Stores & Spares ancl Finished/Semi-tinished products (inchrcling process

scrap) are r,,aluec1 at lolver of cost and net realisable value of the iten-rs of the respecti\c
plantsil.jnits. In case of iclentified obsolete/ sr,rrplusi non-ntoYing items" necessar)'

pror ision is made ancl charged to revenue. The net realisable value ot'setni-flnished special

proclucts. u,hich have realisable value at linished stage orilr. is estin'iated lor the pr"rtpose

of comparison rvith cost.

Residtre products and other scrap are valued at estiurated net realisable vaiue.

Tlie basis of determining cost is:

Rar,v materials - Periodical rveightecl avelage cost

\,{inor rarv materials - Moving r'veighted average cost

Stores & Spares - lvloving rveighted average cost

Materials in-transit - at cost

jrinishecl/Semi-finished prodncts - material cost plus apprr:pr:iate share of labonr" relatecl

overheads and dtrties.

Government Grants
Gor,.ernment grants are recognised rvhen tf iere is reasonable assllrance that the ('t'rn1p3111

rvill co,rpl-v ,itt1 tt . cor"rditions attaching to then, ancl that the grants lvill be received.

Government grants are r.eco,unised in Statement ot'Plotit and [-oss on a systematic basis

over the periods in rihich the Companl recognises as expenses the related costs f"or r'vhich

the granis are intended to compensate. Where the Grant relates to an ass.et valtte. it is

rec{nised as def-erred income" ancl amortised over the expected useftrl lif"e ol the asset.

Other grants ale recognised in the statement olPlofrt & Loss concurrentto the expenses

to r,vhich sr.tch grants relate/ are intencled to cover.

Where the Compan,v recei.'-es non-monetar.v grants. the :rsset ancl the granl are recorded

gross at lair amor"rnis anci relearsed to the income statement over the expected LLsefll lif-e

and patterp of consumption of the beneflt of the r-rnderlf ing asset.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign cuffenc)-transactions are translated into the tunctional currencv of the compan

usinglhe exchange rates prer,ailing at the date of the transetctions. Foreign ercl-iange

J./

3.8

galns
items

,/v
and losses resulting ti"om the settlement and re-measurement ol monetarv

6



SAII- REFR-{CTORY COI'{PANY LItuI{TED, Salem

clentrnrinateci in toreign clrrrencv are reco-snised in the Statemen.l o1' ProI'it antl [-oss a1

periocl -r:nd exchanse r;rtes.

fhe Comp,ny-optecl tbr accounting the exchange tiitl.erences arisir-rg on reporting i-rl long

term fbr:eign.,-,rr.n.1 monetar).items in line nith Clompanies (Accixrnting Stanclard:,)

.\mentlnLent Rules 2009 relating to Accounting Stanclarcl-11 notitied b1'[icrernnrent of'

lndia o* jlst i\larch.2009 (as an.rended on 29'!'December 2011). rihich rvill continLre in

accordance riith Incl-AS 101 fbr all pre-existing lcrng term fbreign ctlffenc\ monelar)

items as at 31't Nlarch 2016. Accoltlingly" erch;rnge difl'erences relating to long ternt

rronel.a,,.items. arising during the 1.ear. in so far as the.v relate to the acquisition of tixecl

aSSetS. are acljr-rsted in the carrl.ing antount ol sttch aSSetS.

Non-,rrlnetar1, items are not retranslated at period-end and are measllred at hist.or:ical ccist

(translatecl ursing the exchange rates at the transiiction date), except fbr nr-rn-m,.rnctal\ itc'ms

measureci at faii value rvhich are translateci using the exchange rates al the date $''Leir tair

vaiue nas determined.

3.9 Emplo-ree Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan
A det-inecl contribution plan is a plan under r,vhich the flompan)' pa)'s tixed conlributions

into a separate entiti,.. Pa-vments to clellneii contribr.rtion retirement benetlt plans are

recoglisecl ur r,r-r ."p.nse u,hen emplo5,ees have renclered sen'ice entitling them to the

contributions. Contributions torvardi Provident Funds are charged to the Statement o1'

profit and l.oss of ttre period rvhen tl.ie contrjbutions to the Fr-rnds are clue'

Defined Benefit Plnn
Defined benefit plans ale the amount of the lrenet'it that an emplo.vee r,vill recejve on

completion of sei-r.ices by ref'erence to length of senice" iast drarvn salarl'or direct costs

related to such benet"its. The le-cal obligation tbr an1'benefits remains with the Company.

The liabilitl, recogniseci lcrr Def-rned Benefit Plans is the present l'alue of the Def-rned

Benef-rt Obligatic,i(DIIO) at the reporting date less the lair valr"te of plan assets. together

rvith adjustments fo, ,rrr..ogniseil actuarial gains r.lr losses and past servjce costs'

N4anagement estimates the present rralue of the DBO annualil through l'aluations bf an

inclepe*dent actuar,v using the plojectecl unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are

inclr_rded in Starernent oi'Frofirand Loss or Other Clomprehensive Income of the 1'ear.

Remeasurement. cclmprising of actuarial gains and losses, the etfect oithe.chan-u.es to the

asset ceiling (if applicable)intl the return on plan assets (exch-retring inlerest), is rei'iectecl

in the balance sheet lvith a charge or creclit recognised in other comprehensive income in

the period i1 r.1'l-rich the-v occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensi'n'e

income is rellected iirmediatell, in retainecl earnings and rvill not he reclassil'ied to the

statement of Protit and 1oss.

Short Terrn ErnPlo.vee Benefits
Short term empll1'ee benef-rts comprise of empl6lee costs such as salaries"

gratia" annliarl lea\ie ancl sick leave \r'hich are accrued in the vezr in r'rhich the

services are renclerecl b1' emplo1'ees of the C-ompan)"

bonus. ex-
assr-rciated

Liabilities recogniseci in respect of short-term emplol'ee benellts ale measll

undiscountetl aitotint of the benefits expected to be paid in exchan-ge 1br

services.

. ,,

t
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L_rpeniiiture incunecl on Voluntail' Retirement Sche-rne is chitrgecl to the Stalc'ntent ol

Prrrtlt ancl Loss irnnlediatell..

3"10 RerenueRecognition
I{evenue is measr-rred at the lair r-a1ue o1'cousideration receireti or receir';rble.

Sale of goods

Sales ari net ol Goods anil Sen'ices Tax (GST). rebates :,rnrl price concessions. Sales are

r:ecognised rvhen it satislr- perlbrmance obligation b1' transietring promisecl goocls or

,*,,ui.., (i.e. assets) to the cllstomel's ancl the customel's obtain control of those gOocls or

se^'ices. Where the contlacl prices are not flnalised rvith government agellcies" sales are

acconnted for on pro"'isional basis.

Vlarine e\port sales are recognisecl on:

i) the issue of bili of lading. or

ii) negotiation of export bills upon expir',v of la1'can period. in cases r,vhere realisalion

of material value rvithout shipment is proviclecl in the letters o1'credit of respectir'e

contracts. r,vhichever is eallier'

Expofi inceltives under various schemes are recognised as income otr cefiaintv of

realisation.

The iron ore llnes not reaclill- useable/saleable are incltrdecl in inventorv and rer entte is

reco gnisecl on disPosal.

Interest and clividencl income
Interest income is reportecl on an accrual basis using the etlbctive interesl methocl.

Dir.iclenils are recognised at tl-re time tl-ie right to receive is established'

3.11 Adjustment pertaining to Earlier Years

lncome/Exp*dit.,r. relating to prior" period. r,vhich do not erceed 1.5% ol TurnoYer in

each case. is treated as income/expenditure of ctlrrent 1'ezrr"

3.12 Claims for Liquiclatecl f)amnges and Price Escalation

Clairns tbr licluirlated clamag.r ,,r. accountecl tor as and rvhett these are considered

recoverable bi tl-r. Corlpanr,. on tinal settlement. These are ad.iusted to the capital cost

or recognisecl in Stater-nent olProfit and l,oss. as the case ma)'be oir tlnal settlemenl ol
Liquidated damages'

Sr.rppliers' aud Contractors' ciaims fbr price

sucl'r claims are accepted b1'the Compan,v'

3.13 Leases

Company as a Lessee

Finance leases

Finance leases" 6hich etlectivell transler to the lcssee substantialll all

escalation are accounted tor to the exteni

drt \i
\ r.-:)
1r3
ll Jr

:i'.,

benet-rts inciciental to or,r,nership of the leased item. ale capitalisecl at the 1

€
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r.alue and present l.alue ot'the rninlmun lease pal ments at the inception ot'the lease lenn

and ciisciosed as leasecl .lssets. Lease pa)-ments under suclt leases are a.pportii,xlecl

betr,reen the 6nance clrarges ancl redr:ction of the lease liability based on the implicit raie

o1'retur*. Finance charges are chiuged c1irectl1' against income. Lease management f'ees-

legal charges anci other initial direct costs are capitalise.l.

if there is no reasonable certaint-v that the Compani, n'ill obterin the or,r'nership bf ihe entl

of lease term. capitalised leased assets are depreciated o\ er the shofier of the estinrated

usetirl li1'e of the asset or the lease term'

Operating leases

Assets acqLrired on leases r,vhere a signiticant portion o1'risl,, and reuards olt]u'nership

are r:erained b1.the lessor are classil-ied as operating leases. L.ease rental are char-ued to

statement of protit and loss on straight-line basis excepl uhere schecluled increase in rent

compensate the lessor tbr expected inllatioirar,v costs'

Company as a Lessor

Finance leases

l"eases i.vhich et1'ectir.e1-v transf-er to tl're iessee substantialil' all the risks ar"rcl beneflts

incidental to or,vnership o1'the leased item are classil'red and accounted tiir as tinance

lease. Lease rental receipts are apportionecl betu'een the t-tnance income and capital

repavnient basecl on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognisecl as revenlle

in the period in rvhich thel' are eamed'

Operating leases

l.eases in lvhich the Companl' does not transfer substantialll' all the risks and rer'r'ards of

or.r.nership of an asset are classilled as operating leases. The respective leased assets are

includecl in the balance sheet basecl on their neltltre. Rental income is recognized on

straight-line basis oler tl"Ie lease term except r'vhere scheduled increase in rent

compensates the compaul' r,vith expected inflationar.v costs.

3.11 Investment ProPerties
lnvestment properties are properties held to eam rentals andi'or for capital appreciation.

lnvestment properties are measured initiall.v at cosl inclucling transaction costs'

Subsequent to initial recognition. investment properties are stated al cost less

accumulated depreciation ancl impailment losses. An1' gain or loss on disposal ot'

inr.estment propert,v is cleternrinecl as the dilference betr,veen net disposal proceeds ancl

the carrving amount ol the propefl.v and is lecognised in tire Slatement of Profit ancl L,oss.

3.15 f{on-current irssets held for sale

Cornpanl, classifles a non-c-Llr1'ent asset as held tbr sale if its canf ing amount ri-ill be

,...oli*...1 principnlll, rhrough a sale transaction. This condition is regarded as met onl1-

rvi-ren ihe asset is available tbr immecliate sale in its presenL condition and its sale is highly

probable.

lield fbr sale are

costs to sell and

held lbr sale. the

Non-curtent assets inclucling discontinned oper:ations. classit'iecl as

measured at the lorver of the canf ing amolints and fair value less

presented separateif in tl-re trnancial statements. Once classified as

assets are not subject to depreciation or amortisation' #%
5/ sauru \3'

kxw#
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Anr protit or loss arising litim the sale or re-niei-isurement olc'iisconiintterl operations is

presenteci as pafi of a single line itern in staternent oiptotit and loss

3.16 \l ine ('losure
Nline Closr,rre Irrorision includes the ciisrnantling and clemolition r-rl infi"astlucture" the

remor,al of resiclual materials and the remeciiation oi'disturbed areas ibr n-rines. l'his

prol.isign is basecl on all regulatorl' reciuirements and relatecl estimatecl cosl trased ori best

available infbmation. Iv{ine clostue costs are providecl tbr in the accor-inting period r'll"ren

the qtrli_gation arises based on the net present r"alue of the estimated tLLture costs of
restorillion to l-.e incurrecl clr,iring the lil-e of the operation ancl post closure.

f he initial close-cloy,n and restoration provision is capitalised uithin""Propetll', Plant and

Eqr-ripment". Subsequent mor.ements in t1're close-dor,r,n ancl restoration provisions fbr on-

gnirg operations. inclr-rding those resulting liom ner,l disturbance related to expansions

or other actirities qlali$.ing tbr capitalisation. r.tpdated cost estimates. changes to the

estimated lir.es of'operations. changes to tl-re timing ol closure activities ancl revisions to

discount rates are also capitalisecl n'ithin ''Propeft,v, Plant ancl E,cluipment''" These costs

are clepreciated or,'er the lives of the assets to rvhich thel'relate. Any changes in closttre

pr:or.islons relating to closed operations are charged /creditecl to the Statement of Profit

and Loss. J'l-re a.mortisation or "unr,vinding" ol the discount applied in establishing the

pror,'isions is cl-rarged as Finance Cost'

3.17 Provisions, contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

Pror isions :rnd Contingent Liabilities
A Provisioir is recogrrised r.vhenthe Companl'has present obli,qation as a result of apast

e1.ent and it is probable that an or:ttlor,v ol resources n'ill be requir:ed to settle the

obligation in respect of lvhich a reiiable estin-rate can be mac1e. Provisions are disctlttnted

to their present va1ue" r,vhere the time value of money is material.

Wl-ren some or all of the economic beneflts reqluired to settie a provision are expected to

be recoverecl from a third pirrtv. the receivable is recognised as a separate asset if it is
virtuall,v certain that reimbr-rrsement rvil1 be received and tire amount of the receivable

can be measured re1iabl1'.

Contil_sent liabilit,v is a possible obligation arising fiom past events and tlie existerrce of

rvhich ilili be conllrmed onl1, b1'the occurrence or non-occurrence ol one or more

uncertain titnre events not u,ho11-v uithin the control of the Compan,v or a present

obligation that arrises tiorn piist er.cnts but is not recognised because it is noj possible that

an outflorv of'resources emboclr,ing economic benefit ui1l be required to settle the

obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannol be made. 'fhe

Companl,' discloses the existence of continqent liabilities in Othel Notes to Financiai

Statements"

In cases p"here the possible outtlolr, of econonric resources as a resuh ol present

obligation is consiilered improbable or remote. no Provision is recognised or clisclosure

is made.

Contingent Assets
Contingint assets nsuall,v arise tiom unplarined or other unexpected events tl"iat gir'e rise

to the possibilitl,o1'an intlori, oleconornic benefrts. Contingent Assets ate ntt1.

thor-rgh are disclosed. rvhere an intlolv of economic benet-rts is probable.

{
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3.18 trncovne Taxes
Tax erpense recognisecl in statement of protit aud loss comprises the sttni of deterrerl tar

arld clirrent tax not recognised in Other Comprehertsi|e lncome (OCil) or cliretrtll in

equitl'.

C'uirrent income tax is measnred at the amount erpecteci to be paid to the- tax authr: rilies

in accorciance u,ith the Indian Income-tax Act. Cr-rnent income tar relating to items

recognised outsicle statement of protit and loss is recogniseci either in OCi ol in ecluitv"

Deferreci income taxes are calculaled using the liabilitl' method. Def-erred tax liabilities

are generalll' recognisecl in tr-rl1 tbr all taxable temporarv ditferences. Def-errecl ta\ assets

are ieco-cr-]isec1 to ihe extent that it is probable that the underlling tax 1oss. unused tat

credits (N{:\T Credit entitiement) or deductible temporarv clif'ference will he utjlised

against tr-rture taxable income. Unrecognised def-errecl tax assets are re-assessecl at each

reponing date :ind are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that futr-rre

tarable prolits rvill allolr'the cief'erred tax asset to be recovered.

Def-erred tax assets anci liabilities are tneasured at the tax rates that are erpected to appl1

in the 1.ear r,r,hen the asset is realised ol the iiabilitl is settled, based on tax rates (and tar

iarvs) ihat have been enacted or substantivel-v enacted at the reporting date. l)ef"erred tax

relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in

OCI or in eqriit.v.

3.19 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash ecluir,.alents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. together u'ith

other short-term highl1. liquid inr,.estments (original maturit-! less than 3 months) that are

readily, c6nr.er-tib1e into knor,vn ar.nount of cash and are subject to an insignillcant risk o1'

changes in valr-te.

3.20 Equitl"andResen'es
Share Capital represents the nominai value of shares that har,'e been issued. Sectlrities

premigm includes an,v premitlm receiveci on issue of Share Capital.

Components of other equitf include the lbllorving:

r Re-measurement of tleflned benet-it liabilit-v comprises the actuarial gain or ioss

from changes in demographic and l-rnancial assi:mptions aud return on plar-r assets.

. Bond Redemption Reserve.

n Other transactions lecorded directly' in Other Comprehensive Income.

o Retainecl ealrings include al1 cuuent and priol period retained protits

3.21 Financiallnstruments

Recognition, initial measurement and de-recognition

Finan-cial assets and t-rnancial liabilities are recognised and are ffeasLtred initialll' at tirir

ralue adjr-rsteci br, transactions costs" except tbr those tinancial ilssets r,rhich are classifietl

at Fair Value thlough Protrt & I-oss (FVTPI,) at inception'

Financial assets are clerecognisecl rvhen the contractual rights to the cash ilolvs tiom the

tinancial asset expire. or .,,vhen the llnancial asset and al1 substar,tial risks and rer,r.ards are

trar"isf"errecl. A tinancial liabilit-v is derecognizeci r,vhen it is extinguished. di

cancelled or erpires.

n\
6
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Classific:rtion and subseq'uent melsurement of fin:rnr:ial assets

For the pLirpose ol si-rbsecltient measLlrement. tlnancial assets ;rre classilled into the

tbllori ing categories r-lpon initial recognition:

' amofiised cost
. f,inancial assets at fbir r,alue ttu'or-lgh protrt or loss (FVl-Pl )

. tinancial assets al fair value tlu'ough other cornprehensive income (FV()('l)

i\li tlnancial assets ercept fbr those at FVTPL are subiect to revieu 1or impairmeilr a1

least at each rePorting date.

.Annortisetl cost
A tinancial asset is measurecl at iimortised cost using ell'ectir.e interest rates if'troth of ther

tirliouing conditions are met:

a) the gnancial asset is held rvithin a bilsiness nroclel uhose obiective is to hold

financial assets in orcler to collect cc-rntractual cash f'lows: and

b) the contractual terms of the tinancial asset give rise on specitiecl dzrtes to cash flous

that are solell pay'ments o1- principal anci interest on the principal amotltlt

outstanding.

The Companl.'s cash ancl cash eqr-rivalents. trade i,rnd most other receir,'ables tali into this

cate gory of f-tnancial instrum ents.

Financial :rssets :rt FYTPI,
Iinanciai assets at F'VTPL inclucle tlnar-rcial assets that are either do not meetthe criteriti

for amortised cost classitlcation or that ale equitf instruments held fbr trading or that

meet certain conditions and ale designated at FVT'PL Lrpon initial recognition. A11

cierilatire flnancial itstruments also fal1 into this categorl'. Assets in this categorl are

measured at fair',,alue r,r'ith gains or losses recognizecl in profit or loss. rhe iair values of

f'lnancial assets in this category are determined b1' reference to actir,e marhet transactions

or using a r,'aluation technique 1i'hele no active markei exists.

Financial assets at FVOC'I
FVOCi f-r1ancia1 assets are either debt instrurnents that are managecl under hold to collecl

and sell bgsiness m,:rdel or are non-trailing ecluitf instrltments that are inerocable

designated to this categorl' at inception.

IVOCl t-il]ancial assets are measured at lair value. Gains ancl losses ar,rJ recognized irl

other comprehensir,e income. except for intelest and dividend income" impairment losses

and loreign erchange cljflerences on monetan'assets. which are recogttized' in statement

of profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement oll financial lirrbilities

Financial liabilities ur.,rr."r,-o.ec1 subsequentll'at amortiz-,ed cost r-rsing the etl"ectir'e

interest methocl" excepr tbr-tinancial linbilities held 1or tr"ading or clesignated at FVT'P1,"

that are carieci subsecjr-ientll at tair r,.alr-re r.r'itl'r gains or losses rgcc,gnizecl in profit or loss'

r\11 derivatir.e llnancirtl inslruments ale accolrnted tirr at FV'I-PL.

ar
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E m tr etl rlecl D eriv ilti'i'es
L)erir atir-es embeddecl irt r-ron-deriVati\,e host contracts are treatecl as sepnranc clerir"atiles

r-hen thel.meet the cleflnition of a derivatir.e. their rislis ancl charar:teri-{tics are not closell'

relateci ro those of the host contracts and the contlacts are not nieasrtred at FV.fI)L.

lmpairnnent of Financial Assets

In accordance riith Ind AS 109, the Companl'applies Expectecl Credit Loss (ECI )rlodel

lor meirsurement ancl recognition of impairment loss fbr tinancial assets.

ECL. is the diffbrence betr.veen all contractr-ral cash florvs that are due to the Llompan) in

accordance uith the contract and al1the cash tlou-s that the companv erpe'cts to receive.

Trade Receit':rbles
T'he Cornpan_v applies approach as specitiecl in Indian Accounting Stanclards (lnd.\S)

10r) Irinaniial Instrr:menis. uhich reqr,rires expected lilbtime losses to be recognisetl fi'om

initial recognition of receivables.

Other F inancial Assets

For recognitioi-r of impairment loss on other tlnancial assets and risk exposllre. the

Con"rpanl: cletermines whethe r there has been a signitrcant increase in the credit risk since

initial recognition.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are otliet and the net amount reported in the balance sheet

rvhen there is a legaill enfbrceable right to offset the recognised amounls anti there is an

inte'tion to settleirn a net basis or reaiise the asset ancl settle the liabilit1' sirnr-rltaneous1""-.

The le,uall1, entorceable right must not be contin-eent on litture er'-ents and mlist be

entbrceable in the normal course ol business ancl in the event of default" insolYencr or

bankrr"rptc,v of the counterpartl"

3.22 Significant Juclgements, Assumptions, antl Estimations in appl--ving Accounting

Policies

3.22.1 Classification of Leases

The Co,rpan\,enters into leasing arangements fur various assets. lhe classif'lcatic''n of

the leasing uirurg.*.rt as a tlnance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment

of ser,eral factorJ. including. but not limited to. transler of or'vnership of leased asset at

encl of lease ternt" Iessee's option to pr-rrchase zrnd estirnated cefiaintv olexc'rcise of sr"tch

option. pr.porliorr of le:rse term to tire asset's economic lit-e. propor:tion of presenl l'aiue

of i,inimr.r.r lease pa-vments to tair vaiue of leasecl, asset and extent of speci;ilizerl tlatltle

of the leased asset.

3.?2.2 Close-down and Restoration Obligations
Close-dolvn and restoration costs are normal conseqrlence of mining or proiluction. and

rnajorit.v of close-clor,rn atnd restoration expenditr-ire are incurred in the 1'ears follo*'ing

the closure ol mine. althoi.rgh the ultimate cost to be incurrecl is uncertain. the L-ompan1'

estimate their costs using curtent restoralion techniques.

3.22.3 Recognition of f)efenretl Tax Assets

J'he ertent to rvhich def-errecl tas assets can be recognized is based on an as

L/ sarru \3'
the probabilitl of the Companl''s tuture tirxable income against uhich t

ll.,;';
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atssets cran l--e utilized. In aciclition. sisniLlcant jr-rdgernent is recl-rireil in assessing the

impact olanl-iegal or economic limits.

3.22.1 [nventories
the Conpanl, estimates the cost of- iil.,entories takin-s into accorurt the most reliable

eviclence. ,.r.1-, o, cost of materials and or,'erheaels cc.nsitlered attrihritable to the

procluction of sgch inr,entories inclr-rding actual cost olproduclion. etc. Nlanagemet-it alsci

estimates the net realisable vatrues of inventories. talting into account the most reliable

ericlence ayailable at each reporting date. Tlie fir.lure realisation of these inrenttrries mar

be attected b1, titr-u-e technologl, or other market-driven changes that ma1" reriuce tuture

selling prices.

3.22.5 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
E,rnplo1.ee benetlt obligations are measured on the basis o1'actuarial asstulptions u'hich

include mortalit-v and uithdrarval rates as u'ell as assumptioirs ccincerning tirture

der.elopments in discor-rnt rates. medical cost trends. anticipation of future salarl'

increases and the inflation rate. The Company' considers thal the assumptions used to

measure its obli-eatiolts are appropriate. Horvever. an.v changes in these assumptions ma)'

have a material impact on the resr"rlting calculations'

3.22.6 Fair Yalue i!'[easurements
The Companl. appiies r,,aluation techniques to determine the fair value of flnancial

instruments (ivheie acti\.e market quotes are not al'ai1ab1e) and non-flnancial assets. This

involves derreioping estimates anci assumptions consistent r.vith the rnarket parlicipants tcr

price the instrument. The Con-rpan,y's assumptions are based on observable data as thr as

possible. otherrvise on the best inlbrrnation available. [:stimated lair values ma)r var]'

fiom the actual prices that lr,ou1d be achier.'ecl in an arln's lenstir transaction at the

reporting date.

3.22 "7 Provisions ancl Contingencies
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made

in accorclance r,vith lndiatr Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37.'Prorisions" Contingent

Liabilities ancl Contingent Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent

er,,ents is applieci best judgement b)' rnanagement regarding the probabilitl' of exposllre

to potentlal 1oss.

3.22.8 Mine Closure antl Restoration Obligations
Enr,'ironmentai tiabilities ancJ Asset Retirenrent Obligation (ARO): Ilstirnation of

enr.ironmental liabilities and ARO recluire interpretation of scientific and legal d:rta" in

adclitior:r to assumptions about probatrilitl'anc1 futlre costs.

3.ZZ.g Llseful lives of clepreciabtre/ amortisable assets (tangible and intangible)

Nlanagement revier,ls its estimate of the usefr-rl lir.'es of depreciable/ amortisable assets at

each repofiing date" based on the expectecl Lrtilitl' of the assets. Llncertainties in these

estimates relaie to actu:r1 norrnal rvear and tetrr that may change the utilit.v of plant and

e(lLlipmcnt.



/<-els*->i*1 
= -T\.'

+-J I I ._*l \

: ,, .; .:"1 i

,l'.t.'. ',t i$l
\ti1]:.5:"-g;E

F
z.ri
2

-J

:
Z

;ZF:t
/ Jar-

:CC.l .a.l alf.A3-=

ai

rl
r

1a aa r--t

z1

a

3
a
F

z
t-

U
trl

'lc
trl
F
J3

U
U

:: ?.r

-.id -

z2

i!i

za,

-::,-ra-n, = -' ..al
t_

ff.r*1.,.a-f{-

tr,ta,a€r=ir)

5-rr.a'ar'€t.,€\:-,.,5r.,---

d

V)

-l .I \r)

U

J
a(u

-: ?1]
tn' i7,

?,'

aa

": i.r,}'- r-
/ ' - cl

a-

r - 3 T X r '- = ='1

^l 
aa

ai

- z ct cr a i : x ] 'l

N
N

al

!f

N

r
c.l

tr-cl

r
at

r
d

ea

tl

d\
ra

d

==t
t)

L

a

aaJ.-, ,

/z

z4'
v=

a

o

.L

L

o
L

o

C.6

5va"a

G_L

oo
-Laa

(.) <

U
+
+

0

aa{

rA
OI

a.l

0)o
cge(2<

a,a;cEFEl.l!lrl tr

EL
i9
ts -E-.Z:N<€s
l{oqr

tri.x Ei\JsE
>3nal .e*
A;!Y E,;
r\ b.\J u-i1o\J
Fl E
lilfn S.
A/'=\

< *s
od zs



-

;
v

i - l^i
-, t ai

Z.

al
F-

+
aa

2

z
Z

L

a

2

Z

:l

:.1
i
<

z

::'/a)
;,ial

a-

1.

;&*9

-:'?11
'.-d

Z.

]=rr€€r€,r,

ra,r.a5--J

1i\-%'rr -lr€r-,

!a
1

\n
ca

al

cc

al

,-

al

N6l

U
J
aa

-: !^t, *, Z=- Z.

cZ

7Z

=,==/=

,= !=
/ '=at

Z.

rcal .l'a€-€C'.1

ol

+oi cQn
t;;t::l

o.l

t

al

r
1
d

t
!f

t--

r
a.l

ral

t-N

r
ci

.+
n
ia

r
1
al

+$

t-
a
ol

L
?

a

=!
=t

.,3.-- I

-l

-ir/.2

/=
v=.,: a

1r.

,!

-l

L-

ar.

U
+
+

F

0

5b

'f,.I

^al

(Bdrr=a
A;
ftlo
F{E
l-( E
lrl tray
i9

Z:E4os
Fqoq)

Aq\
H ES\JsE
>33
^l .E*
^E\3.=Su 

=s* Etw
d

l-l
EEI 3'ra/'=s

; e:
(,) zs



I

--:^,
t*,2:
z ,i-1'2.

atC; d

ZI
3l
-l
<lal
-

Z

!-

Q

rj

F
J
=2
=(J
O

i-?^.
,t =:- :.1

,.2

L9t

:-3

===,a": v.l
,A-=

-
n

c

rf,l
-l_.1

rn
'f,

(.)

.]
aa

i- yt.,-==/ ;rt

,=

/-
/.

":3^t,*-=
/ . ial

-
t3
-C

r-t

F
$

.J:

-:
7.!

1.,
i::Zi-,
-7,^/a_1-

-=:z.4
/!Z

31

-

I

Z

=.-.v. al
Y

d

zl
ot
-l-t<i
U:-
U

z
-
U
H

ii

f-l
t-
J
=)Z;
U
U

2 . = trl

-t--l. _ ail

-i

?:

L9L

:r?

-:!rt
=r==

n

1
O

T

tn:t

U

J
ar,

r!

=Zi*{Jcl

,z

'-: i, ^r,A -=

nc\I
OO

-=::

r-t

t'-{

:l
:I
-t-'t-zli

L^

:
4=
.J:a -
z=l

- -'/
-= ai'!:1=

;/:;
r'!z

t

- :- , ?1

-i''-
al: 6l

.lrl
ZI

=t2l
\lzl
UI
FI
<l
U:I
-l

5
a
Z

t-
s
U
trl

LH

t^t!
t-
l<
l-rt-
l_>
l)
l9

i ' i rr

t=

;7

L9L

:-* 3

" 
- 

J al
.a -=/ ' i .r

z.

=t
=l

-l

a)

€c
i

*lel.l

6l

U

aa

t

"Jyrr
.,A |=

=l

-

t

:l

-
:

7

--1 i'l

-t>l

3l
2.1

!-.

a
3

Z

Z

3

Uti
hl

ri
F
j

lz.
l=
t9

=:2-l: , irl
Z

-, i-
-: aal
-*' - 7t

:l

cl
C;

@
O
,<

C
rl

.I

€

U
J
aa

al

=: !d

?

-ar-/ 'aa)
Z

C;

^l

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

r.1-lil'r, 
I

zl
=lrl
:l
-l̂l

!l 
=

-1.-

-!"-4-

:t 1

rf)
.I
al

o!,
GCEa>

r---1 rQ

Fq,
iitr

,to

)r P+Z:N,.os
Qrey
-,oti4tr.\x E*\Jgs
>33
^/ -E:F(U:
Ac$
V cf

<y' ou
J iul*i c
lrlrl 3e
A/'==

< qs
UJ ZS



SAlt REIFRACTOR.Y CO&'IPAI{Y LlhI [TED, sarenu

\ttte florming plnt o[triinancin]l Srtatem,ents for ttre velr endetl ilst trnarch 2025
(-.111 untounts in { {."rores, unlcs.s otltent'ise strned) dBffiffiM

m[tffitEffimwltrffiffiH

..\s at 31st
.\l lnch. 2025

\s at 3lst
NIanch. 202-l

6: lf R..1,DE RECEIYABLES - hiON CUIT.RENT

Trlcie receli ables - cr"cdit impeirccl

I.ess: -\llou ancc tr.rr irredit losses

7: L0ANS )lO)t-(lt R[dE]T

Lor-in lo others

8: OTFIER Fl\ANCI.\L.dSSETS - NON CtiRIi.ENT

Securitl- cleposits

C laims rccor'er'abie

Ldss: ,\llo\\-ance tbr iloubLtiri non-cuttent assets

2l : DEFER.I{.ED TAX NL,'T Ll.\l3lLlTlES / (,\SSE]'S)

tr'ar effect of items constituting rlef'erred tar liabilities
ILeLaied to propert\. piant and celuipircnt
Irair r'aluc ad.iustnrent .'l'in., cstnrrnl" thlor-rgh OC'l

T:rx elfect of items constituting tleferued tax assets

Retirement Bcnc'flts
Othels - Pltx,isior-ts tt,r []acl Debls
,,\cctLrrulatccl br-rsiness losses arrcl rLnabsorlrecl ileprcciatiurl

1.54

6.tl
6.11

2.26

-5.8 _5

-i 8)

0.07 0.07

0.07 0.07

i.7 |

0.25

0.71

0.2s

0.96
0.:-t

0.96
0.tl

0.12 0.12

l.,j.l

1.73'

2.26

(2.11

(0. t rJ)

t 1 i5 r

(0.64)

0 "47)

Del'erred tar net liabilities I (assets)

9: INCO-\IE TAI ASSh IS (N[T)

\J'ort.r'illcr'!1li [J\ {l]Jt ,r; p1''r1 isiililr

I I O: ,OTUAR ASSE-IS - NO),1 CL,t{llEN-I

I ( l1ri1u) .\rlr,rrct's
I ers: .\ll,,rrcnce li,r' Juul.tlitl cl,pitl,l .rJr.tnics

lOthr'L:

]. 

\.lr rrrrec' tr) c,,nlr':rit,,r s .t sLr1'f Ii!'1.

I .:::: \llo\\.Lnfc lirt JT,LII)Llui Lrl.lci.l)\.t\

(0. re) 0. 15

t).79

.+.37

0.08

0.79 0.08

1.03

4.37

i.E7

0.17

1.7() ) l6

2.47
1.44

t.18
t.i 1

1.03 6.2{



SAX[, R]EFRACTOIRY COPIP,A.NY LiMITED, sanenr
i\ote forming pnu'l of'F inancial Stnrements llarr the,-eirr enderl Jtst \larch 2025
(. lll amounl:; itt { {-rores, unless athe ntise slolel) apffiffiffsmffiw-

rffi i$l,$1ti:1$EEm ffi{fl E ffi ffi i&

.ls nt .-'i I st
\lurch.2{)25

.\s nt J 1st

llancli. l02J

I l: lNYENT()Itlt-S

Ralr'miiterial
R.l\\ n.laterials

.\dcl: in-rransit

Lcss: :\ikr..i ancc tirr unustlbIc n,aterials

\\'ork in Progress

Finished Cioorls

Stores & sp;rres
Pr"otlLrctior-r

Fuel Stores

l.ess: Allonance 1br non rror ing,iobsolete items

I2: 'It{..\DE Fi.EC:!.,IVr\BLES - CIlR.RENT

I racl,.r receivahles ('onsidered soocl-[ insc.curccl

Less: ALlonance ibr"crcdit losses

1J (i): CASH AND ('ASH EQIIE!'ALENTS

Clull'enL iccounts
'l !-rnr Depos jts rr ith orieinal maluri'r1 upto 3 ;r-rnnths

l.i (ii): 0"ll[IER B.,\NK BALANCES

L ln spent (iortrrolllte Social Responsibi 1 it1 balirn ce

1: irerl clcposits n ith rnaturitr trr mole than 3 mtrnths buL

than l2 months
I css

14: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURR.ENT

(-' laim.s recilr,el'ab I c

Ileceii'ables liont erlplor ees

l5: O'tHEIL (ltiRRENT ASSETS

.\ilr rrncc:s tr) u()ntrac:o1'-q & sLrpplicrs

57.-96

57.96

1.07

16.79

4.J r

ir.t2
i.88

57.00

1.26

13.22

1.39

57.-96 57.00

8.89

0.64 0.6-+

9.5-l

.-i.20
9"s2

5. 13

"1.5 0

t.44
0.5 u

.5 5.07

80.15 75.87

52.79 46.-65

52.79 46.65

,5.9r-l 55.{--i

5.9,1 55.65

5 -i.!)0

0.03

7 5.(t7
55.90 i5.70

0.i 5

0 r0
0.3 -i

0.()6

0.4s 0..11

1.01 1.21
1.01 1,27

' ,t'!
00a



SAI L REFFI.A CTORY CON'IPANV
\otc lor"minE pirnt of, l"-inrucial Stittements f,or" th,e
l.lll unt.otttttt irr il ()'org.r, uttless othertt,ise slutctl)

[-I&XITED, satenr

vear errded 3lst Nlarch 2025 dffiffie
&{fr$rffiffiffiBXg[&ffimffi

As at 3l st

,\l a rch. 2015

.\.s rt ilst
.\lrrch.202J

I6: EQtiIT'!' SIIAIl[. CAFITAI,

Authorised clpital
L{luit\ shxrcs of { lii cach

{ I .(}0.(100 e.luit) sharcs oi'{ 10 each )

Issuet! rnd subscribetl capital ct fully paid-up
(1"0().000 equit\ share:i oltl0 cach firllr paid up)

0. I (.1 0.r0

0.10 0.t0

A-s at 3l st
llarch,202J

N umbers -Lmount Nnmbers ,\mount
uity shares lvith voti

Balance at the beqinning of the r eal'

Shares conrerted io sharcs nith r.otins riqhts during thc

Balance at the end ofthe year

Balance aL the besinn

Shares conrerted to sl-rales lrith voti
IJalance at the cncl of thc-

Total equity shares outstanding at the end ofthe

than 5r of sh in theDetails of the shareholdcrs holdinq more than 5Y/o olthe slrares

Name of Shareholder

As on 3lst March. 2025 As on 31st March.2024
No. of Shlres

held
%o of Holding Nn. of Sh:rres

held
7o of Holding

Stecl ALrthoritr o1' India L.imited 99988 99.988 99988 99.98 8

As at 31st
i\larch. 2025

As at 31st
March,2024

17: OTHER EQUITY

Reserves & Surplus
Capitnl Reservc
Opening tralance

Adclitions cluring the l ear

Less: Lltilisation dnling the iear'
General Reserve
Opening balance

Adclitions during the 1e ar'

L,ess: Utllisation during the 1'car"

Retained Earnings
Opening bi,rlance

,\dcl: Net prolit r' loss (-) tbr the ) ear

Adcl: Other comprehensive incorre'loss (

L.ess: Final dir idencl paid

Less: lntclin.r dir idencl paid

I.ess: 
.Iransfcr 

to GenetLl Iicserve
Totnl other equity

43.7t)

,+3.7 0

21.39

89.1 3

43.70

+.)./\l

19.6{)

119.49

19.60

1.79

t7"58
2.02

I I S.49

11.87
(0.lli)

i .26

45.00
1.79

1i17.4-+

7().11
(0.01
0.1)8

6.00

:.02
151.22 182.79

ffim=s1 
srrnr \*Z

€ffry#

Farticulars
As *t 3 lst

llarch.2025

1.00.00() ()it) 1.00"000 0.10

Shrrrcs boLrqht back durine thc rcar
1.00.000 0.r i 1.00,000 0.1t

Eouitv shares rvithout votins riqhts

Shares lssued during the vear

1.00.000 0.1( 1.00.000 0.1t



SAIL R.f, FH.ACTOTTV CO&{PAI{Y
\ote lbrming part rof F inanciall Stiitemlents lor the

{--lll umoutrt.t in { {.'rot es, unle:Es rttlterwise stuted)

n INIXTED. salena

1r"'ar ended Jtrst llnrch 2025
mrffiffiiflrw
igg&&ffigBE]ffiffi|,i$ffiw

,\s rrt Slst
NIarch. 2025

..\s a1 3l st
)tanch, 2ti)2-l

18: TR.ADE PAYABI,ES - NON CURRENT

,{nrount pa1 ;rb1e l(} coniractors,lsupplicrsiothers

l9: OTIIER Ftr\.\\CL\L Ll.\BII-lTlES - \ON CLrl{t(E\T

Other" prrl ables

20; PR0\'ISIONS - NON CURREN I'
Provision for Employee benefits
Plor ision Lbr gratuiti'
Pror ision lor accrucd lear e liaLrility

Plovision lbr mines clostLre

Other provisions

20: NON CURRENT PROVISIONS

Gratuitr
Opening Balance

.\dd : l'r'ovision during the 1'ear
1-ess: .,\mount paicl i utilised cluring the year

I.,ess: Pro', i*sion llrillen back during the r ear

..\ccrued Lcave Liabilitv
Opening Balance

,{dd ; Pror ision duling the lear
l,ess: AlnoLrnt paid i r"rtilised during the lear'
Less: I'roi ision u'ritlcn back dur"ins the \ ear

NIines dqlttrq
Opening Balance

i\dd : Provision during the lcar
[-ess: ,,\mount utiliscd durin s the lear
I-ess: Pror ision tlitten back dulins the r eirt'

othqrc
Opening Balance

Add : I'rolision during the lear
l.ess: ,\mount r-ri.iLised rlLrring the lcar
L-css: Prc.r islon ri ritten Lrack cl-rring Lhe ) cal'

1.83

056
1.82

5.9i

1.50

i,.-) l

6.07
5.93 6.07

j,1. I 5 i 9..17

3,{.15 39.17

0.5 7

0.16

0.03

I 1.05

I.a-l

0.7.r

0.0-l
I 1.05

11.81 11.65

0..5 7

0. l6

0.03

I 1.05

1.8i

0.7 4

0.03

1 LLl5

0.7 4

o.t7
0"75

0.+-+

0.30

o:03 0.03

I 1.05 n.0i

1r.81 13.65

0



SAIL R.EFRACTOF{.Y CONIPANY tr-illr'IlTED, saleur

\otr: forminE pirrt o1'Fimancirrl stutements lhn the lear encied Jlst \Ilrch 2025
(.411 unnunts in { Crores, uttles.v othemti're stuted)

As at .1 l -ct

ll:rrch.2025
ns ;rt *11st

llarch" 2021

22. I]ORtrtOl\ INCS - CtrllREN'[

Securetl
F rorr ba;rks

2J: IIi.\D[ PA\ ABI,ES - CUF(R.ENT

,\mount pa1 able to uun tr.ICtors/'sr"tppl iet's,bthet's

24: OTHER FINANCI.\L LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Secr-rlit1 cleposits

Ilnspent corpoarle social le:iponsibiIit1
1'rryi$le tirr capital urrks
OLher par ables

25: OTHER LIABILITIES - CUR.RENT

lOther Pavables

I

I

lro' pnor r\ro\s - ( L IlREN"l-

I

I 
Provision fol' emplor ces hertcfi ts

ll'r',,r i:inn iur trl::u r'e r isiun

I 

olh.r" nt'tr isl,'r'rs

L

I

116: i.. r RRF.\T PRO\ l5l0\s
l

l\\'asre Rerision
l.....=...-

lOpcning Rrlunue

].\J.l : l'r',,r i:ion .lrrlin-: I ri .\ calr'

I 
i.ess: \ rrtoL,nt Ltti l i.ed tluring tllc r;rtr
ll crs: Plor i5r(,lt \\ rittL'n l,lre k Jutin* the I e .Lr'

I

]Others
opening Brrl,rn,;e

l.\..1.1 ' 
P,'ur':i,,n .lulinl llt. r.'lLr

I l.c:.: .\rr'.rurrt rrtilis;J Jtrring the 1i:rt

] 
l .r': Prur i\irrn \\riti\'.r l..rck rlurirt= tlie rc:tt'

I

I

2r: ( t R[tL\1 T \\ LI.\BILITIES (\[l )

I

Iopcning t]:i[in.c

I f ,-t.t' e,,'r i.irrn JLrttn:l lltc r e ut'

I uss. \rltrrntt p.ri,.t Julinl thc -relr

ll.c.-. l'r',,r i\rr'n \\rittirr l'.rrk Jtrtitr; thc lclLt'

I

2.26
r.00
0..16

0.01

0.98

1.28

7.65

0.01 7.65

< tt

5.44

1.10

0.44
3.t6

17.08

0.47
T-'. J J

25.59
2t"78 26.i9

0.28 0.78

0.28 0.78

2.8(l

r.0 r

2.26
l.+8

.3.81 3.71

2" 80

1 .01

2.25

1.48

1.48

011

1.42

0"06

0"36

0.36

l.l3
7.25

r0.02

3.81 3.71

0.36

0.36

htc

ffi*ffiqm
ffiffiEEWEIli8il[mWlmW



SAII- REF RACTORY CO&[PAniV LXh,'[ITED, sarem

Note forming purt oI Finanr;ial Statr-'merats lor fnre.lear enrled 3lstt ]trarch 2{}?5

(. ll *,ntounts !il { Crares, unless othemtise statei)

Ycar en,rled

Jlst \larch.202:i
\ elr enderl

J lst .\larch. 202-l

28: R.EYtlNL E [R0]l OPEIL{l-lONS

Sale of producls
[)o nrc:ili e

Su'o lotirl (a)

0th er Opertting Revenues

\r,ri_l .r ncnitil'-rctor cric.
Sale oiempties ete.

Sr"rnilries

Sub Totai ( tr '

'l'ot:rl ( afb )

z9. OTIIT,R INC'ONIE

Interest inconte
Bank .l!-posiLs

Sub I otrl (a)

Other \on-operiting income
.\lkr$uace.s no longcr recluirecl lriLten back
()thcrs

SLrbTotal (b )

'I otirl ( a+b )

30: COST OIl NL\TERIALS CONStiNIED

Ran N'latcrirl - Q\1,\G,/ DIIN{ i SLi\ \\i.\l'L,R 1 Iri\l
'I otal

3l: CFI.{NGES I\ INVEN'IORIES OF lrlNlSlltlD GOOI-rS,

\\'ORI\ IN PROG I{ESS .{N D B\'-Pt{ODt'C'tS

Opening stock
I'inishcd Coocis

\\"ork in Progrcss

Irt:irt ori lincs (sLrb-grrdel

Less : (.'losing stock
Finished (loods

\\'olli in Progrcss

Iron ote iines (sLLb--r:raile ;

,\ccretior(- 1t l)eplctirrn to stock

13.22

1.26

168.40

r0 l2
^.i I

I {ri l3
I 6E. +0 163. 1 3

0.08

0.07

0.{}7

0.9 r

0.{,).1

015 102

168.55 164. t5

5 "96 10.07

5.96 10.07

0.02

0.80
0.2l
0.5 rJ

0.82 0.80

6.78 r 0,87

93.-i 7 9A.t)
98.57 90.42

I,t..1 8

I 7.86

i t.6l

ll.lti

16.79

1.07

13.22

1-.26

-3.t8 L85



SAI{, REF RACT ORY COh{PAhlV iL{S'IITlEil, si,lemn

Itiofe [ormiLng pilrt ol FinlnciaI Stutements for tile,ieirr 0nrlerl S lst Nlrrrch 20]5
(All nwouttls iu { Crore.s,lrrles.r otherwise ststcd)

Year entled

S lst lIarrh" 2'l)25

Yelr ended

"] lst )lrrrch" 2t)2{

J2: E}XPLOI'UF- EENEFnTS EXPENSE

Salaries ct rrilqes

Lear e encashlnerrt

Conrlranr's conli'ibuiion to pror itient & other' funds
Trar el concessiorr

\\rell'are e\penses

Gratr-ri1r

33: FINANCE [05TS

Interest Cost
Btrnk borrorr inss

13.29

0.45

0.68

0. 19

1.49

0.31

14.89

0.54

0.65

1"4t

0.31
t 6.-11 r 7.80

0.40 0.05
0.J0 0.05

Year e'nded

3lst ]larch" 2025
l'ear ended

llst IIarch.202J

3.1: OTFIER EXPENSES

Consumption ofstores & spares
(ionsurnption

Rcpairs & maintenlnce
IlLrildings

Plant & Ilachinerr'
Others

Hrndling expenses
Rari niaterial
Remuneration to r\urlitors
ALrtiit ties
l-a: ar-rdit f-ees

for othcr sen,ices
OLrt of pockct c\pcnses
,A llolyances
Doubtfirl debts. ioans ancl aclvanccs

Stoles" sparcs irnd sllndrids
Po*er antl Fuel

I'reiehl oLrLl arcl

Rolelq irnd cess

I nsurance

Lau chargcs
Poslage. lelegranr ct lclcphoile
PrintinS ct stationen
Ili'rtcs & Tarc-s

Securitv e\peuse-s

TravclIing e\l)enses
Training e\penscs
Expend i tule on corp(lrlto soc i a1 rcsponsi 1-. i I itr
Foleign exchlnge 11uctr-rations ( nctl
Flandling c\pcnscs - linished goocls

\,1 iscel laneous

0.20

0, l2
0.12

2"75

0.44

1.25

0.02

1.13

10.7 r

1.47

0.41

0.14

0.63

0.07
0. l3
0.08
104

4.23

0.14

0.57

0.08
2.65

10.29

0.19
0. I5
0. r0

7.06

0.,+l

I t!

0.02

i.ii
9.60

,i.09

0. rl
0. t5
0.06

0.06

0.01
t.1i
2"40

0.21

0.21

i). i2

2.05

8. 15

0.0l

0"01

0.0 1

0 0l

0.+5

0.63
0.17
u.60

39.01 .10. r 8,ii*s
'-l c:: :-1.,-3 \fl-.:t ii=:: 
i''; :i':,'r l' :/'i,/ -*

t.."::-$(-{,Sl
q"!.'4.',i'+-Y,i/"

€
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5,4 T L R E F R,4 C T O R Y C O &IPAi\ Y L tr )UI T T E D, S A I E NT

Note forming panrt of Financian Startennents for the l'ear ended 3tr'rl\Iarch 2025

-l-,{. Estiniateti amount of-contracts remaining to be exc-cr-rted and not provided fbr (net of acil'ancesi
(llL.

Particulars
As at 31't March,2025

(t Crore)
As at 31't March,2024

(t Crore)
Capital Commitments 0.05 1 3.10
Other Commitments 3 7.50 36"22.

'[he amount due to N,licro and Surail Enterprises as defined in the 'fhe Micro. Srnall and Nleciium
Enterprises Dereloprnent Act.2006 has been determined to the extent sucl'r parties har,e he:en

identilleci on the basis of intbrn"ration available r,vitl'r the Comp:rn1,'. l'he disclosr-rres relating tcr

lr4icro anci Small Enterprises as at 31st N{arch. 2025 are as under:
crore

No. Description As at 31't
March.2025

As at 31't
March,2024

l" The principal amount rernaining unpaid to suppiiers
as at the end of the Year.

NIL NII-

ll. The amount of interest accrued during the Year and

remaining unpaid at the enrl of the Year..

il. The amount of further interest remaining due and
pa1'able even in the succeeding Year. until such date
r,r,hen the interest dties as abo.,'e are actuali) paid to
the srnal1 enterprises, fbr the purpose of
disallor.vance as a decltictible expenditure under
section 23.

v. l'he interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
suppiier as at the end of the Year.

For the Year ended
31st March,
2025

31'tMarch,
2024

v. The amount of interest paid in temrs of sc-ction 16.

alon{r rvith the amolrnt of the pa,r'ment made to the
sr-ipplier bevond the appointed dav during tl.re Yeal.
The amount of interest due and pa1'able tor tl're

period of delaf in making payment (rvhich have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
Year) blrt rvithout adding the interest specifiecl
under this Act.

rg



SA X L R E F R,4 C T O RY C O,I,[ PA!{1' U I,{ T T E D, S U I C NI

l{.ot,e f'orrnimg part of Financial Staterments for the,l'ean erlcletl 3l't}Iarch 2025

i7. As per the Department ol Public Enterprises (DPE) grlicleline. the Cotnptrnf is recluirecl tit

contribute Ltp to 3091 ol Salary (Basic Pay' + Dearness r\llorvance) in respeet o1' erecutive

emplolees as superarlnuation benefits" rvhlch ma1 inclr"tde Contributorl' Pror'"iden1 Fr:niJ.

Gratuit\," Fension anci Post-Supelannuation Beneflts. Accorclin-uly' thc' Cornpan; has tnacle

provision 1br pension beneflt lbr executive euplo1'ees t-i: g') of Salarr, rv.e.t-. 1st "[anr"tar-v.201].

fhere is no mention zrbout Pension Scheme in the \\'aqe Agreement eutered into r'lith the Llnion

for non-execuiive. hence no provisitln fbr non-executives'

'Ihe cnmulative provisioniliability tor.l'arcls pension benetlt tirr executive emplcx'ees. at:rounting

to T1.76Cr.(t0.15Cr.duringthe.,,-ear)hasbeenchargedto'frirplol'eeBenefitsErpense'.

i8. SRCI lloarcl had cleared the proposal fbr rvage revision of its Erecutil'es in its 15th lloarcl

r\Ieeting held on 11.01.20i7 as per 2007 DPE, Scale and the same r,vas efl'ectir'e ior 5 .rears rvith

eflbct from 01 .01.2017. SAIL Corporate Ol-tice has accordecl its clearance on 2i.09"2017 for

implementation of the sarne. Ministr-1,' of Steel l'iad accorded appror,al fbr rvage rer''isii,.'n of
Flxecr,itives on i6.11.2018 as per DPE, 2007 pa.v scale rvhich \vas cotrlmunicatecl b1' Srrl[-

Corporate Ofllce vicle letter Ref-.No.PER/EC/1220.Dated28.11.2018. Therelbre. the next \\'age

revision of SRCL Executives rvas dr,te tlon-r 01 .01 .2022.

'flre rvage revision proposal rvith effect tiorn 01 .01"2022 \\as approvecl by the SRCII- Boarel in

its 49th Board Meeting on 28.09.2022. for a period of 5 years. Ac,cordinglv the provision to'uvards

rvage revision of Exectitir,'es u,ith efl-ect fiom 01.01.2A22 r,vas plor,'idec1 in the books olaccounts

lrom 01 -01-2022. As per the books olaccounts as on 3l-03-2021an amount of T1.76 Crores

was appearing as Liability. The N{inistr.y gave the approval f-or the r'vage revisioil on 18-09-2024.

Accordingly' the revised u'ages r.vere regularizecl h'orn the October 2024. One instalruent oi'

Anears has been paid during 2021-?5. Accordingll' the liabilit.v lor balance \\rage revision arreal's

of {1.30 Crore is appealing in the books of accouuts.

\\rith respect to the Wage Revision of Non-Executives. the siure is due h'om 16"12.2023. ]'he

provision ol{1.00 Cr. torvarcls the same has been plovidecl durring the y'ear and the cumulatire

liabilitl. trpto 31.03.2025 is {1.50 Crs. Total liabilitl,f-or Wage Revision (Ere & NExe) is T2.80

Crs,

39" The Compan-v internall1, reviell.s the carr-ving anloLmt of its fixed assets on each balance sheet

date fbr the purpose of-ascefiaining impairment. if :rn1'. by'considering assets of the entire plant

as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). 1l an;- such indication exists. the assets recoverabie amounl is

estimated as higher of the net selling price and the value in use. Valr-re itr use is based on presetrt

valye of estirnated firture cash l'lou.s e-xpectecl to arise tl'otn the continuing use of an asset ancl iiorn its

rlisposal at the end of its usefirl lif'e.An impainlent loss is recognisecl rvhener.'er the carrf ing alnount

olan asset erceeds its recorerable amor:trt. On suclt re.;ieu'as or.l 1" lvlarch.2025" no itttpairlrettl

loss is requirecl to be pror idecl.

6Pe
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l\iote forming pnrt of Financial Statements for tlae l.ear entled 3X'liUarch 2{)25

.10" As per Section 1j5 olthe Companies Act.201i" the Comp;lnv is requirecl to spenii" in ererl

f-rnancial 1.ear. at least 27i, oi tire average net prof-lts of the Ct.iurpanv macle c'luring the three

immecliatel,v precerding tinancial ,rears in accorclance uith its Cotporitie Social Responsibilitl

(CSR) polic1.. rvhich r,vorked olrr to {0.5i crores fbr the l'ear 201-}-25. Sft(-t. has committed a

LiSR expenditure fbr t0"57 crores.

-l'he 
statlrs of CSR expenditure utnder variolts ireacls is as urcler:-

{Crore

Particulars Spent Unspent

Education 0.04 0.27

Women Emporvenlient 0.00 0.05

Sanitation 0.01 0.ti
Others 0.07 0.0t)

Total {t.12 0.45

In respect of-nnspent CSR amount. SRCL has placed the Work Order ancl the liahilitv lias been

createcl in the boolts olaccounts during the year 202'4-25'

As perthe guiclelines issued b1,the N{inistrl'of Corporate.,\ttairs. the unspent amollnt per-taining

to olgoing projects shall be transf-erred to "Linspent CSR Accottnt"" Accordingll' the same has

been compliecl to" fo1 {0.45 Clrores b1' opening an acconnt lr'ith state Rank of India as per the

provisions of sec 135(6) olConrpanies Act.201i'

For tl-ie y,ear 2023-24 as per thc- Clompanies r\ct 201i CISR erpenditlrre tt'as to be for ?0."+6 Crores

against rvhich the hLrdget olT0.52 Crores u as allottecl" 'I'he Llornpanv iras spent T0.20 (lrc''res vr ithin

the F.y.2023-24. The Balance unspent amount of TtJ.32 Crores has been transt-erred to Ur-rspent

CSR Account as per section 1i5(6) Companies Act.2013 and completedancl paid in2A24-25"

'The'"CSR Unspent" bank account tbr the 1'ear 2023-2'1 closure is under process as on 31-03-2025.

-ll.Information on lesses as per Indian Accounting Stanclarcls (Ind AS) l7 on Leases:

Mining land

The CompanS,'has leasehoicl Lands ibr minin-s b1' r'il-tue of its rights ui-rcler the

atter considering the right/ economic compulsion fbr rener,-'al.

lease agreemeni
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j\riote fr.rrming part of Financial Stiltenaeuts for the I'ear enrlEd 3l'rllnne h 2025

DEFII{ED BENEFIT SCI{EIVIES

(leneratr Description of Defin,eal BeneUt Sclaemes:4?.

Gnatuity

Leave Encashrment

Provident Fund

: Pay,able to Erecutiyes Lln separatiott.ir1l5 days pal'(Basic plLrs

DA) last clra['n lor each cornpleted -_veal oI service to eligihlc-

eurplol'ees r.r'ho rencler cgntinlttltts se:ryice of -i )ears or more.

For r\on-erecutirres. the gratuit;' is paf iible on separation ,r lj
c1a1's pa1 (Basic plus D,A') last drau'n fbr each completed 1'ear of

seryice to eligible etnpiol'ees rvho rencler continuous serl'ice of

5 1'ears or more. Gratuit-v shall be calcr-llatecl '/q 
one rnonth par'

(Basic plus DA) ltrst drar,vn 1or each completed .vear of serr''ice

be-vond 30 ,vears fbr Non-executives. The maximum amount ot

gratuit). ot' t20 lakhs tor both execritir,.es & non-execlltives hars

been considered for act'ttarial l'aluation.

: Palable on supelaltltlttltion to eligible llxecrttive emp1o1'-ees rvho

have sccumulated eamed lea1,e" sr-rbiect tt'i tt1itxitrttm lin-rit o1300

da1's. For Non-E'recutive elnploi'ees to a maximum limit of 20i)

da1.s olearned iea1'e. E,ncashment of accumultrted eapred leave

is also allor,ved r.tp to 30 da-vs or 509/o of leave at credit rvl.richever'

is less once in a financial r'ear'.

: l2ot'o ol Basic Pa1' PlLls Dearlless Allorvance" contributed to

Ernp1o1,'ees Pro.,,iclent Fund Organization. Saiern b--r the

compan)'.

'rt 'l'
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Note formirag part of Finamcian Stiltennents t'or the 1'ear endetl 31't)trarch 20?5

43. Ilisclosarres requireri untler {ncl AS 19 on'Emplolee I}enetits', in nespect of definer'l hene{'it

ohligations are :

(a) Il.econciniation of Present Value of Defined llenefit Obligations :

(Tcrore)

sl.
No.

Particulars Gratuity
l,e:rve

Encashment

i) Plesent Valrle o1' proj ected benet.it

obligations" as at the beginning ol ttie

"veaI.

7 "25 I "7b

ii) Service Cost 0" 18 006

i iL) Interest Cost 0.53 0.1 i

i.) Actr-rarial Gains(-) i I-osses(+) 0.2e 0.i6

v) Past Sen ice flost
vi) Benet'its Paicl 0.88 0.43

vii) Present Value o1' projected benet-rt

obligations as at the er-rclof-the l.ear.
(i+ii+iii= iv-r,'-vi)

7.37 1.88

(b) ILeconciliation of Fairvnlue of Assets and obligations

The Companv has fr-rncled the gratuitl, liability through ii sepalate Gratuit,v Fund. The t'air Value

of the pian arssets is 1-rainl-r- basecl on the infbrn"ration given b1'the insurance courpanies througlt

lr,hotrr tlie inr.'estments have been n'iac1e b)'the Iirind'

The reconcili.tion of fair i,alue ol assets of the Gratuitv Funtl and ileflnetl benefrt grattritr

obligations is as uncler:

crore

Sl.No Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

i) Fuil V"l.t. of plar-r assets as at the begiruling cll the 1'ear 5.4;1 6.21

ii) Expected teturn on Plan assets 0.39 0"46

i ii) Actual CompanY' s contribrition 1.8 i

iv) Inlerest lngomg/Actuaria1 Ciain 
"i,oss

0.05 -0"0t-)

v) Beneflts pal'ntents 0.88 1 .15

vi) -h-air value o1'plan assets as at the encl of the i'ear 6.81 5.-l-+

vii) Present r,alue ol cief-ined benelit obligation I "31 7.25

viii) X.-t tiutrititr-i'ec,:gnisecl in the Balance sheet (vii)-(r'i) 0.56 -r.82
:;=i:!

{:'r 1r_"-*.-qp;1
-./ \,id \,

.-' '.'J.i i::1 \.f?'
- \L--l?i I '.-
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1r-ote forrming part of Financirnl Stntemerats lbr the veirr ended 3trot}'[archr 2025

The reconciliation of tair value ol assets of the Leirve Encaslament Flunrl ancl r-leflnc'rl

benetit Lear,'e Encashnent obligations is as uncler:

(c) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year :

(tl) Effect of 0.5 percentage point change in the f)iscount rate on Emplol'ees'Benefit

schemes
)

Sl.No Particulars 2A74-25 2023-24

i) Fair ValLte of plan assets as at the beginning of tire 1'ear r.01 1"19

ii) Expected return on Plan assets 0.08 0.09

iii) Actr-ra1 Companl" s contri bution 0.75

ir,) Iritelest Incon-re/Actuarial Gain/L.oss 0.03 -0"02

v) Benet-its pa)Tnents 0" 15 0.2-+

vi) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the vear \.12 1 .01

vii) Present value of defined benetrt obligation 1.88 1.76

viii) Net liability'recognised in the Balance sheet (vii)-(r'i) -0.16 -0.75

Crore

sl.
No.

Farticulars Gratuity
Leave

Encashment

il Sen ice C-ost 0.1 8 0.06

ii) lnterest Cost 0.13 0.05

iii) Actuarial Gains
(-)/Losses

0.29 n li

iv) Past Serr,ice Cost

v) Expected Retum on Plan Assets

vi) Total ( i+ii+iii+iv-r') 0.60 0..+4

vi1 Emplovees' Benef-rts Expenses :

a) Charsed to Profit & l.oss Accc'rt-tut 0.31 0".+5

b) Clharged to Expenditure l)uring
Construction

0.00 0.00

c) Charged to OCI 0.21 0.00

d) Charged to Prof it & Loss Account-
Other Expenses

0.00 0.00

viii) Acttral Return on Pian Assets e.rcluding
interest incot-ue

0.44 0.r0

crore

sl.
No

Farticulans
0.5 percentage

point decrease in
discount rate

0.5 percentage point
increase in discount

rate

i) Gratuitr 0.10 0.r0

ii) Learre 0.03 l/-;7 oHk_'l:

*fffii4
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lliote formins Irrr-t of Finnncial Statements tor the J-ear emdcd 31'Iltral'ch 2025

(e) Et't:ect oll0"5 percentnge poinrt cll;range in the sanarl' escirlation rate on Empnol'ees'

Benefit schemes

(f) Investments of Gratuity Trust I Leave Encashment Fund

(g) ActuarialassumPtions

T crore

sn.

Iio
Particulars

0.5percentnge point
decrease in discount

rate

0.5 percentagt point
increase in cliscour:t

rate

i) Gratuit-v 0.07 L).07

ii) I-eave 0.03 0.0i

Particulars 7o of Investment

As at 31.03.25 As at 31.03.24

Gratr:itv Trust 92.46 74.98

[.eal'e Encashtnent Trust 91.i9 57 .1s

Str. No. Description As at 3l't March,25 As at 31st March, 24

i) I)iscount Rate
(per annum)

6.19% 1.270h

11 N,{ortalitv rate i009/o of IALIV{ Q0l2-2014) 1 00% ol lAljvt (201,2-201 1')

iii ) Retilernent Age
- Executives
- Non Executives

60 Year
60 Year

60 Year
60 Year

iv) Salarl' Escalation Executives : 6.2.5o/o P.a.
N on-Exectrtives :6.25% p.a.

.Executir,es : 6.2504 p.a.

Non-Executives:6.25% p.a.

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

As at 31st March 2025

Period Leave
EncashmentGratuif"v

Between 1 to 2

Betn'een2toSvears
Betr,veenito4\'ears
Bctu,eeu,l to 5 1'ears

Betr,r een 5 to 6

6 \'ears onr,vards

Proiected tsenefit Obli

(( LI ur e/

l]pto 1 vear 1.7 6 0.36

1.61 0.80

0./t2 0.3i
0.95 0.01

1.30 0.07

0.1 3 0.01

1.19 0.30

/.3 I 1.88
ZilitiAPz\,
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Note forrnirag part of Financinl Statements llor the l'ear enclecl31't]llnrctra 2t]25

-lJ. Disrlosure 0f i\Iaterinl Transactions w'itle R.elated Farties:-

Sules lt' S \ll. Units
,=.{( rn L Torcs)

Procurentent fiom SAIL Units :
(T in Crores)

An anount of { 5.12 Crores has been provided as liabilitv in t1-re books ot accounts tbr the Salar-v &
Wages paid b,v SAIL fbr the emplo,vees posted at SRCi- lbr 2024-25'

.15. Disclosures of provisions nequirecl bJ" lnrtian Accounting Stanclards (lnd AS)37 'Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Brief Description of Provisions :

NIines afforestation

costs

hlines closure costs

0r'erburden

backlog nemoval costs

Pa1'able on renerval (including deen'ied rener,valli'fbrest

cL-ar:ance of mining leases to Governrnent allthorities.

lou,arrls aftolestatioir cost at mines fbr use of forest land

fcrr mining purposes,

Estirlated liabilit1, tor.vtrrds closure of mines" to be

incLrrrecl at the time of cessation of mir-ring activities.

To be incured tr-irvards re;noval of or,'erbr-trcien backlog

at mines Or.er the futllre \:.eat:S.

Panty Name Ton Gross
Sales

GST Net Sales

RHII-AI STIIE,L PI,ANT 5 126.881 8?.22 12.54 69.68

BOii,,\RO S'|EEL PLANT 5756.113 81.41 12.1+2 68.99

ROLJRKtrLA STEEL PLANT 669"132 t2.78 1.95 10.83

DI,I RGAPTIR STEEL PLAN'I 590.588 8.20 1.25 6.95

Ai,I-OY S'|EEL PLANT .+0 8.5 69 6.19 0.95 i ).1
) "L\

IISCO STE,EL PLANT 351.7 44 6.90 1.0_5 5.85

sAlL R-EFRACTORY UNl',r (RANCF{I) 60.000 0.10 0.0 r 0"09

sArL REFRACTORY UNIT (BHIL.AI) 2.182 0.06 0.01 0.05

Sales to SAIL LInits 12976.110 197.86 30.18 t67.68

Party Narne Gross GST Net

SAIL REF RACTORY L]NII' (BOKARO) 4.50 0.69 3.81

6vo



crore

Movememt of provisions Nlines
affore-
station
costs

Mines
closure

costs

,[)ver

burden
re,mo|al

custs

'[otal

Balance as at l't April. 2024 0.03 678 6.81

Adelitions during the Year

Amounts utilised clr-rring the Year

{-inusecl amount reversed duriirg the Year

Balance as at 31't N4arch.2025 0.03 6.78 6.81

S A tr L fi E]6'ft, { C T' O RY C O t t P,4 i'\t r" L I } I I T E D, S u I e n't

No,te fonrning pnrt ot'Financian Staternents for the y'enr endetl 3l'r)trnrch 2015

46. Contingent Liabilities:-

Legal

uncier the ivlines and Ntrinerals (Der.elopment & Regr.rlatiol) Act. 1957

( ( cl.ore)

Particulars
As at 3Lst March

202s
As at 31st March

2024

Disputed Statutorl Issues
.t ?< 1.7 5

Dispr-rted Othel matters - Contract 0.75 0.94

Bank Guarantee Fumished 18.84 11.30

Total 24.34 16.99

State Govt. & t\Iines

Govt. of Tamil Nac-lu raised Deinancl Nlotice tor.vards surface rent compensation tbr lv{ining

leasr: hold lands fbr the period 19-13 to 2010 tbL an arnount of t158 Crore-q during Aug 2010 on

SRCL birsed on CiO No.,{60 clt 14.06"98 u,hich r,r,as issuecl under'famil Nirdr-r Panchzrl.at Act

1994" Sr.rbseqLlentl)-the Go.,.ernment of 'I'amil Nadu has rer,ised tire denrand to T1 153 Crores

b-v1er,,vingintereston08.02.2017. F'urtherthesarnehasbeenreYisedtoTl830.3c)(.lrore-svide

letter dated 05. I 2.2023

SRCL has ijled a ri.rit petition betlrre the Maclras High Court sliitin-s that surtace rent

col-npensation was not pa1'ab1e lbr Government Poron-rbolie lands and the demand notice is not

issueci uncler the provisions of Nlineral Concession Rules 1950 and hence not sustainable ancl

obtainecl interim sta)'on the arbore cluring April 2017'

The Flon'ble Nlaclras IIigh Court disposed oif tl're \\rit Petition on 30.03.2023 b1 passing tl-re

pute.

SALEI.J{

a

s.>

orders that SRCL is given the 1ibert1, to zrpproach the Rer"isional
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Not,e fiorrming part of Financial lstatemaerats for the 1-e:rr endecl 3n'Illnrch 2025

Accorctri,g1,v appeal u,as flled betbi'e the ltel'isional ALrthoritf i( entral t-icirt.)" Neu De1hi" on

2-{tr, \,Ia1'. 2013 ancl the proceedings u,ere conducted. Hearings nere coniit-tcled on 1i.09":():.i"

11.12.2023. ar-rtl 04.0.1 .202-1. The rer'lsionarr,aulhority'has issued the fitral orcler nn.l8i20l-+"

rlateci l5.li4.2021b1.setting asicle the Government's Orrier ancl renrancling back the tnatter itl

the State Gor' ernrient.

Department 61'Geologr.. 'I'ami1N:rdu hirs isstrecl t,,,r.o tl'esh ciemaLrcl f-br trvo periods tor,-areis the

Annual Compensation tbr tl're thlee Nlining l-eases as uncler:-

Demand letter dated Period t\urount (T in Cr.1

21-10-2021 1987 to 2006 184.92

25-1r-2024 2001 to2024 i 424.68

SRCI, has f-ileii appeais before the Revisionarl.Authorit-v" N{inistr\,of N{ines" Gort. of li-rdia"

against the abol'e demands in Januarl' 2025'

-17.'fhe N,lining opelations in SRCL lvere stopped trom Januarl: 20i7 fbr recluirement of

En'ironment Cleiilance lj.om N{inistrl,of Enr.ironment ancl Forest alrd fllin-raie Change

(MoEIi). SRCI- submittecl application lbr Environment Clearance to NIoEF durinc "ianuarv

2017.

MoEF has clirected SRCL to obtaitr No Objection Certificate l'ront Mines & Geolog-v

Deparlment in respect of settlement of'compensation alrount pay'abie against ope,"ation of

mini,g actiyities. i1 the absence o1'Environment Clearance" in terms ot'provision uncler section

Z1(5) olthe MNIDR Act 1957 as direcled b}-the Ffon'ble Supreme Cor-rr1 in their jud.er.nent

datecl ?"'1An-cust. 2017 tbr sin-riiar cases.

The State Government has issr-Led three numbers ol'N4en"Lo ricle No. ROC No.45i2018/N1-

5/N4ines-A. ROC No.45/2018iNl-triMines-A anci ROCI No"45i2018i\"1-7lh,lines-A ali datecl

04"03.2020 ilirecting SRCI- to cleposit an amolrnt ol T-19"07.14.2:+l/- to'"vards coiltpensatiLrn

'nirh 
respect ro Environment Cllearance 1br the period tiom 0l .il"+.2000 to 3 i .03"2017" Litrbility

inrl-re books i-riaccount-s ol 2018-19, rnas c-:reated lbrT15.66 Crores fbrthe partial periocl lionr

1-5.01.2016 to 10.0i.2017 as per demancl receir.'ecl florn the State Golernment" ancl {33'"11

Crores in tl-re accounts tbr 2019-10 and included uncler non-clrment lia.hilitv. totaliing to { 4'1.(17

Crc'tres.
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Note forrning p:rnt of Financial Statements flor the -1-ear ended 3n'tllarcla 2025

Based on the lvlinr.rtes oI N'leeting held on 02.1:"20][ r,rith Aclditional {-hiel Sc'cretarl'"

Industries. Govt. of Tarnil Nadu. and other OtTicials ancl sr"rbsecluent appro""al lrv the SRCI-

Boarrl vide Circular R.esolurtion No"ClR-17 01 dtd.-i 1 "12"2021. lhe arnount ol {36"77 crore r'r,as

paid to Govt. of Tamil Nadr-r during 2021-2?. tor,i'ards 1009/o compensarliorl tvith respect to

Enr.ironment Clearance in lespect of Recl Flill lvlines. The balance of t12"30 ('rr-'iles u':rs paicl

to State Government ir.r Nor.202-1 against the ottrrer tlr'o leases. Accordingly'all reqr"risite

rhcumentation and clealances rvere issued b1'the State Govt'

On continuous persuasion rvith ttre Govt. of Tamii Nadr"r. SRCL receivecl Letter of trntent (Lol)

in the name of SAiL Reliactory Companl'Ltd. on 02"11.2022 in respect of G.0. No.853 i.e.

Red Hills N4agnesite and Drlnite Nlines. As per Terms of'Reference (ToR) gtar-rted b1' Nfiiristrl

of Environment & Forest and Climate Chan-se (l\loF.tj & CCI) in respect ot lled Hill l\{ines

(Ci.O. No.853). the documentsimaps r,r'ere obtained fl'om the Principal Chiel Conservator of

Forest an{ Wild Lile Warden on 06.02.202i afier c1u11' authenticated anci certified b-v him.

C'opies of Dratt Environment lmpact Assessmenl (EIA)/ F.nvironment Managernent Plan

(EMP) reporl has been submittecl at Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Boarcl (INPCB). Salem on

24.03.2023 tor conducting PLrbiic l{earing. The Public Hearing rvas held on 0.{.07.2023 fbr Red

Hill Magnetite and Dunite Mines. TNPCB has finalised tlie EIA/EIV{P report. Creclible action

case has been filec'l b-v Tarnil Naclu Polh-rtion Control Board, Salem vide CC No: 196i202-1.

dated: 0403 2024. SRCL has tlleclfinal application fbr grant of EC at Parivesh Portal of MoEF

& CC. on 09.03.20221. Erpelr Appraisai Comrnittee has included SRCL's proposal for grant of

EC in the agencla issued tor,r,ards meetings schedulecl in lv{a.v 2024.

The final irearin-e rvas held on 25-03-2025. and Experl Appr;risal Committee has recommended

Envjronment Clearance in respect of Red Hills lv{agnesite and Dunite lVfine l'icle N4olvl clated :

i810l 2015

4!%
'=re/ snrrrrl \pw
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Note forrni;ng part of lFinilnciarl Statemrents for the 1'ear en rletl .3 tr'thlarch 2025

Jl]. f innracial Risli n-Ianagem,ent

i) Financian instruments b1' category

({crore)

Fanticulars
As at 31st Manch,2Dzs As at 31st March,2024

F'VTPL FVOCI
Amorti:ced

cost
FVTPL FVOCI

,tmrortised
CoSt

Finan cial :rssets

lnvestments
Equitl instruments
Trade receir.ables
Cash and cash ecluil'alents

Other: [Jank Balances
Loans
Derivative f-rnancial assets

Other receivables

52.79
5.9;+

5 5.90
0"07

t.1l

46.65
_s5.65

7 5.10
0.01

1 1i

Total 115.87 t79.20

Financinl liabilities
Borrorvings
Ttacie payable
Derir.'atir..e L i abilit"v
Other payables

0.01

1 1.i7

5 5.93

7.61
6.07

65.87

Total 67.31 79.61

ii) Risk Management

The Companf is exposecl to various risks in relation to financial asset ancl iiatrilities" The nTain

t,l..pes of rislis are market risk. ct'eclit risli ancl lic1uic1it1'r'isk. The Companl"s tisk mrnagenretlt is

coorclilalecl in close cooperation n'itli the boarrd of directors and fbcuses on actir''elv securirig the

Companv's shorl to nteiliunr-term cash florvs by' minimising the exposure to voi;rtile tlnancial

marliets. Long-term f-rnancial investments are lranageci to generate lasting returns. 'T'he Company

does not engitge itr the tracling o1 f-rnar-rcial assets fbr specr-rlative pulposes nor cloes it rvrite options.

The mosl signilicant flnaucial rishs to rvhicl'r the Ccrmpan.v is exposecl are clescribed belori'.

A) Creclit risk

Creclit risk is the risk that a counterparl-v tails to cliscirarge an obligation to the Companl'. I'he

Company,, is less esposecl to credit risk tbr r,ariotis llnancial ittstruments. tirr example amor"rnt

receilablesft'om cLrstomers other than Sz\IL, Plants. placing tertn deposits. etc" I-he Companr"s

maximum e\poslir.e to credit risk is limited to the can:f ing amount of'tbllorr,ing tvpes iinancial

Eb

assets.



S4il REFR,ICTORY CO,VIPAiYY LI}TITEil, SAICM

Note forming pnrt of Fireancinl Staternents f:o,n the J'ear entned SlntNlarch 2{}25

-Cash ancl cash ecltlivalents

-'frade receivables

-Other f-inancial assets tneasttred at alnofiized cost

Ihe Compan1,. continuously monitor"s the cr-istomers ancl ottrer col-mtr:rparties. iclentiflecl either

indiyicir-rali1.or b1,the Companl'. and incorporates this inlor"mation into its credil risk controls. 'I'he

Companv's po1ic1. is to cleal or-rl-V rvith credilr,r,orth-v cotlnterp3fiies"

a) Credit risk management

Cash anrl cash equivalent

Creilit risk related to caish and cash ecp-tivalents is negligible as deposits are made ln highly

rated Public Sector bantris on11'".

Derivative financial instruments

SRCL does no1 have anv Derir,'ative flllancial instruments.

Trade receivables

Credit risk related to trade receivables ure ver.v less as the conlpan-v sells its products to SAII-'

Plants onl-v except fler,r,iterns lbr: an.v sales to RWF" uncler Vlinistr-v of Steel. fhele is no credit

sale to private parlies.

Other financial assets meilsured :rt :rmlortized cost

Other 6nancial assets measured at amofiizecl cosl include advanc:es to emploi,'ees and others.

Credit risk related to these othel 1'rnancial assets is ntanaged b1 monitoring the recoverabilitl'

of sr-rch arnounts continuouslv. rvhile at the sante time' internal control's\stem is in pl;rce to

errsure tlic amotttrt,s arc \\ ithin ,.lefincd lirrlitt.

b) Erpected creclit losses

Companl'pror,icies expected creclit losses based on the fbllou,ing

'Irade receivabnes

'fhe Companv recognizes lii-etirne expecteci credit losses

approach and uses historical infbrmation tt'r arive at loss

trade receivables:

on tlai-1e receivabies litled

ofpercenlage reierant

<1 ,



SAII- REF-R,ICTORY COrtIPANY LIMtrTED, Sulewt

\ote tormine part of Financial i5'tallements fc,r the 1'ear emrLletl 3lnt}larch 2025

(Tcrore)

Other fimancial assets measur,ecl :lt amortizecl cost

Companl,-prol.ides for expectecl creclit losses on "loans ndvsnc:eS ancl other than trntle receivtrbles"

by. lssessing inclividual flnancial instrulents fbr expectation ol an.v creciit losses. Since tl'ris

category, inclucles loans and receivaLrles o1'varieci nature and pr-Lrpose. there is no trend that the

coixilan-y can drar,v to appli" consistentll' to entire populatior For sr-tch financial assets' the

L'ompatn1.'s p61ic-v is to provides 1or l2 n-ronth expected creclit losses upon initial recognition ancl

pror.ides fbr lifetirne erpectecl credit losses r-rpon signilicant increase in creclit risk. The Cotnpanl'

clses ngt have an1'expecteil loss based impairmenl recognized i:n such iissets consiciering their lo$

creclit risl<. natrire" thoLtgh incr-irrecl loss provisions are disciosed uncler each snb-categr:r1 of such

financial assets.

(Tcrore)

Ageing
(As at 31st Ntrarch, 2025)

0-3
months

3-l?
months

t2-24
months

24-36
rnontlas

mrore thnn
36 ruonttas

Total

Ciross calrl-ing amount

Erpectecl loss rate

Expected credit loss Pror.'ision

31.65 2t.11 0.i4
1009,6

0.34"

0.18

1009/o

0.1 8

5"65

104%

5.55

58.96

6.17

Carry'ing arnount of tnade

receivables (Net of
impairrnent)

31.55 21.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 52.79

Ageing
(As at 31st March,2024)

0-3
naonths

3-12
months

t2-24
months

24-36
months

more than
36 months

Total

Gross carrf ing amount

Expected loss rate

Expectecl credit loss provision

39.77 6.88 018
100%

0.18

0.21

1 00?;

0.21

5"-+6

100%

5.46

52.50

5.8s

Carrying amount of trade
receivables (Net of
impairrnent)

39.77 6.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.65

Reconciliation of Exnected credit loss provision ({crore

Particulars
Frovision for

Trade Receivables

As at 31st N1arcli. 2024

Changes in provisiort

As nt 31st Nlarch, 2025

5.85

0.32

6.17

*,e



S,.IIL ftEFR4CfOft Y COIIFTINY LI]'{ITED, Stleru

Note fgrrning part of Financial Statements f,or the 1'enr emrled 3l'th'Iarcie 2025

B) Liquiclitv risk

pn_rden1 liquiclitl risk management implies maintaining sulllcient ciish to nit:et obligaiions uhen

clge.i\iirnagement monitors roliing forecasts of'the Ccrmpan)''s liquiditi'position :urd cash and cash

eclui'slents on t1-Le basis olexpected cash flor,r,s.'1he Compranl'takes into acclti.itrt tlie liquiditr ot'

the market in u,hich the entitl.operates. In acldition" the Ccinrpanr"s liquidi{r' management poiicl

inr,olr,e-. projecting cash flor.vs in major currencies ancl consicleting the level of iiquicl assets

necessauv to meet these. rnonitoring balance sheet Iiqr-riditl' r:rtios agaitrst internal anti external

regr-rl1tor,r. requirernents aitcl mai ntai ning clebt flnancing pIans.

Ntraturities of financial liabilities
The tables belo1v anal1'se the con'rpan-v's financial liabiiities into relevanl nraturitv coinpany.ing

basecl on their conlr.actual mirturities fbr all non-rlerivative linancial liabilities ancl the amorints

disciosed inthe table are the contractr-raluniliscountecl cash flous. Balances rlue rvitfrin 12 months

ecptal their carrl,ing balances as the impact of cliscounting is not significant.
(tcrore)

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities as at Less than

I year
1-2 y-ear 2-3 year

More than
3 years

'Total

31st March,2025
Non-derivatives
Seci-rrit1' Deposit 1.10 0.82 0"23 1"4i 3.5 8

Trade payable 5.44 5.9 j tL.37

Borror,vin-gs from R attk 0.01 0.01

Other payables 20.68 7.14 5.20 i 9.33 52.3 5

Total 27.23 7.96 5.43 25.69 67.31

(Tcrore)

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities as at Less than

I 1'ear
1-2 _tenr 2-3 1'ear

N{ore than
3 years

Total

31st March,2024
Non-derivatives
Securitl' Deposit 0.41 2.17 0.23 t.43 .+.30

Tr:ade pa,vable 2.66 3"41 6.01

Bomor,vings fiom Bank 7.65 7.65

Other pa-vables 25.94 7.t2 2.31 25.62 61._59

Total 34.06 9.89 5.20 30.46 79.6L

d
d'

,sq



5,1IL R.EFRACTORY COIIP,INY Ltr,WITED, Sulem

\ote t'orming part of Financial Strternents for the --l'ear ended 31't}[arch 2025

-19. Segrment lraformation :

The Compaul's operations mainlv relate to One Primary Segtttent and lltere ere no Secorrdary gect-urapltical

segrflent:i.

5S. tCapitatr ilIanagernent

fhe compan-v's capital tnanagenlent objectil'es are

-to ensure the companl''s abilitl'to contintte as a going concem

-to pror,icle an adeqr.iate retrrn to sirareholclers

fhe company monitors capital on the basis o1'the carrving amoltnt of equitl' less cash and cash

ecltiivalents as presented on the face of'balance sheet.

t\lanagemellt assesses the conlpanl's capital requirements in order to n-iaintain an elllciettt overall

tinancing str"ucture r,vhile al-oiclir-rg excessir.'e leverage. This lakes into account the subordintition

ler.els oi'the compilnv's rarious classes oiliabilities.'fhe colnpan-v manages the capitaL structure

and malies atljustments to it in tlie light of changes in economic conditions anc'l the risk

characteristics ol the underl_vin-c assets. ln order to maintain or adjust the capital structure. the

compail),ma,v adjust the amount of divitlends paid to shareholders. return capital to shiireholders.

( < crole )

Panticunars
As at 31st

March,2025

As :lt 31st

NIarch, 202.1

Total equitl. 151.32 182.89

Total equity 7s4.32 182.89

Diviinends (Tcrore)

Panticunars
As at 31st

fv-[arch, 20?5

As at 31st

N'Iarch, 202.1

(i) Equitl' shares

- I- irral cJir iclcnrl paici l0i-i-l-1

(ii; Dividends not recognisecl at the end olthe reporting period

liii) Interirn dividend paid

1.2.6

45.00

0.08

1"26

6.00



S1ru R E F R,AC T O Rtr' C O,1' [PA)\ Y lfi'l I T E D, S a I e nt

N ote forminq part ot' Firanncial Stntem,ents for the 1'ear end ed 31 n()l nrch 2025

51. r\. CwtrP AGEING SCHEDL|LE

Amount of CWIP as on 3110312025 frorn initial recognition in Balance Sheet

lr1 crore

S.it{o. C\A,'IP
0-12

months
l2-21

montnrs

24-36
rmonths

More than
35 months

"[ota]

1 Froiects in progress 0 0 0 0 0

2 Proi ects Teinporari lv strspencled 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

,dmount of CWIF as on 3110312024 from initial recognition in Balance Sheet
lN CIOIC

S.No. CWIP
0-12

months
t2-24

rnonths
24-36

rmonths
More than
36 months

Total

1 Proiects in progress 0 0 0 0 0

2 Pro j ects Ten-rporilrill' sr"rspencled 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

51. B. CWIP COMPLETION SCHEDULE
As on 3lst NIarch r2025 ln cl'ore

S.No. CWIP
0-12

rnonths
12-24

months
24-36

months

N{ore
than 36
months

Proiects in progress 0 0 0 0

Projects -[emporari11' 
sr"rspended 0 0 0 0

TOTAX, 0 0 0 0

CWIP COMPLETION SCHEDULE
.As on 3l't )Iarch,2021 In crore

S.No. CWIP
0-t?

rnonths
t2-24

months
24-36

rnonths

More
than 36
months

Froiects in progress 0 0 0 0

Floi ects Temporarilv sttspendecl 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0
"P=-;{-

)\
E-'

SALEM

'l*9
*csY

o
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Fiot,e forneing part of Financial Statemaeeats for the -1'ean ended 31'r)'[arch 2{}25

5X. C. TR,{DE FAYABL,E AGEING SC}IIEDUN-E

Outstandins as on 3110312025 frorn due date of payment
2-l-i6

monthsPafiiculars

lv{Si\Ifr - DispLLted

N,ISI,IE - Undisputed

Subtotal - A

Othels - lJndisputed

Subtotal - B

Grand Total (A+B)

m crore

Outstandins as on 3l/03/2024 from due date of payment
24-36

months
Vlore than
i6 months

N'ISME - Dispr-Lted

IVISME - Undisputed

Subtotal - A

Others - Dispr-rted

Others - lJndisputed

Subtotal - B

Grand Total (A+B)

#v

61r4'
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F{ote forrming pnrt of Finarecial Stafements f,or the y'enr enderl 3l'lNlnrcna 2025

-;1. D.TI{ADE FTECE,IVABLE AGtrlNG SCI{EDUI-E

({

Ageing of Trade R.eceivables as at 3Lst March,2025

1 2-2Jt

m ouths

mrlre

than 36

months
Prrrticulans

Gross carrying arnount

(A) Current:

U rrdisl;uteci - ct'rtt siderecl good

DispLrted - considered

lJnclisputecl - credit irnpaired

DispLrted - credit imptrirecl

Total current

(B) I.{on - current:

Undisputed - considerecl good

Disputed - considered

UndispLrtecl - credit impairecl

Disputed - credit iir-rpaired

fotal Non-curtent

Creclit loss allolvauce

Net carrying value

1,/,:i),.'

.;i,-.-r,

l\::'i"t
\.*;r

0- bb



.tl/l- RE FR,4CTOR.| COIIPAI y L.{lfiTED, Su|ewt

Note formrinE part of Financial Statements for the 1'ear ended 3l'tNl:rrch 2$25

{in crore)

Ageing of Trade R.eceivables as at 31st March,2024

more

than J6

months
Farticulars

Gross carrying arnount

(A) Current:

LJndisputed - considered good

Disprrted - consiclered

t-) nr'lispLrtecl - creclit i mpairecl

DispLrted - credit irrpaired

'fotal current

(B) Non - current:
I.JndispLrted - considered good

Disputed - consitlered

LJnclispLrted - credit irnpairecl

Disputed - creclit irnpaired

Total Non-current

E.rpected loss (9'c,)

Credit Lrss allorvance

Net carrying value

Reconciliation of ex credit loss allowance
Particulars

((cfofL'l

As at 31st N'Iarch,2023
Cihanges in allowance-Less
As at 31st Nlarch,202{
Cihanges in allor,r,ance-Add

As at 3lst Nlnrch, 2025

5.58
0.1 7

1.53
0.i 2

6.r7



SAIL REFRICTORT' COllP,lliY Ul! trTED, Sulew

Note forrning part oI Financial Statennenits for t]a,e ],eilr ended 31't]lnrclr 20?5

ri1. ,E. Balai-ices of some cf the Trade Receivables, Other A-csets. 
-[r'ac]e 

ancl Other Pa1'ables are sr:bject

to cosflrmations,/reconciliations ancl conseciuential adjustment" if an,v. Reconciiiations are

calriecl out c)n on-going basis. Provisions. u,heteter consiclered necessiir.y, hilve heen mi'Lde.

Hog,e1,er" N{anagement does not e.rpect to have anv r:taterial tlnancial imptrcl of srich pending

conf-trmationsileconc i liations.

51. F'. ln accorclance r.,ith lnd AS 115- Rer.ertue lionr L-ontlacts u.'ith Clr-rstomers". GST amor"int of'

{31.1jCrore (Preyiogs Year: t29.53 crore ) is not inclr-rded in Rel'enue fiont Operations"

51. G. fhere was no transactionu,ith Rail \\/heel Factorl'dLu:ing 2024-25.

51. H. "fhe research ancl deveioprnent expenciiture charged to Statement of Protit and Loss ancl allocatecl

to Fixed Assets/Capital r,vorli-in-progress (Net). durins the Year" amount to Nll, (DLu:ing tlle

previor-rs Year NIL) and NIL (During the previoLts Year NiLl respectivel)'.

51. ll. In compliance to Genelal Financial Rule 238(5) & (6), the details of Grants receivecl frorn N,finistr,v

of Steel and it's r:tilization for Resealch ancl Development Projects cluring last thr:ee years are

Nil..

51. ,I. The Shareholdinq of Fromoters are as belorv

Shares held by prornotens at the end of the year
7n L'hange

during the 1'ear
2$21-25

sl.
No.

Prornoters Narne No. of Shares

o/" of
Total

Shares

i Steel Ar-ithorit--l of lndia Litnited 1 00000 10094 NiL
'fotal

1 00000

51" K. Right ol'lJse Assets

Set gut belou. are the carrvins ainounts ol ltight-of'-{ Ise Assets recognised and lhe movemetlts

eluring the period:
tn crore

Particulars
Vehicles

As at 1't April. 2024 0.02

Aclditions/Disposal 0.00

Depreciatiorl expense 0.02

As at 31't March,2025 0.00

b{
o



.I,4 1I R E F KA C T O R.1' C O IT PAI,I Y L I M I T E D, S U I C W

hiorte rtbrnling p:rrt ollF-inancial Statenaents fior tkre p'ean end,ed 31'I]Iarch 2025

51" L. I'trining land

I'he Liompari1' has not accoLrrtecl ibr leaseholcl lands lor mini:rg as iinance leilses as the lease

agreement is neitirer transttrrecl nor renewed in the name of the compan).

SAIL had taken over Burn Stanclirrd Cr:r. I-td.(BSCl-) On 16-12-201 1. On the date oih"ansfi:r.

the status ot-thc Leaseholci \\rt1s ils betrorv:-

Original Cost as on

i5-12-201 1 (t)
Depreciation upto
31-03-2011 (t)

Net Ilalance as on

15,12-201 I Lt)
Net Balance as 0n
3i-0i-2011(t)

2.2s.195.s0 2.25.194.s0 1 i

'The land u'as transl'eri'ec1 fiom BSCI. to SRCIL . on 16-12-2011. as ;rsset appearing in the

balance sheet. The land appearing in the balance sheet is consecluent to take over and emerging

b1,ua_v of transt-er fiom BSCL to SRCL. ancl the szrme has been amortizecl in the books of

accounts by BSCI- over a period of time.

Tlie leasehold 1ancl mainil. consisting o1'\4ines. r,'nilh at'ea details are as lbllorvs:-

'\t'ea ( in rcres

Slno N,lines Area r\rea taken b1 Gor,'t.

lbr Tidel & textile park
Balance
nll4

1 Red ttili N4agnesite

& l)unite l\4ines

1538"670 1s3 8.670

2 Jerghir N{a-snesite

lvf ines

250.440 246.203 4.237

a
J AS .Xaghir

Magnesite Mine
93.450 i 7.01 6 s6.-13-+

'fota1 1882.560 283.21 8 1599.3-t 1

Tl"re land r,vas given on iease lor mining and uot for an1' othel purpose to the ersti,vhile

organization. ancl as appearing in the books ol accourts of BSCI-" the satne ivas transferred in

the books to SAIL antl the olganization was renamed as S.\11. reii'actorl' Co. l.td. 'fhe lancl

leasecl to erstr.vhiie. BSCL ancl hanciecl or"er to SRCL is e.tclusir ei,v governntenl orrvned. The

lease of the land is valicl till 202i) and the lease deed are still in the natre of RSCL and the same

have not .v-'et been tlansferrc'cl to SRCI-. I'he recluest lbr n:Lme change is pending befbre the

registering ar-rtholitl'. Tamil Nachr. The Gol'ernntent has over the tin-re. taken back 283.21 8 Acres

ffi
w

of the mining lancl as above lbr clevelopment olthose areas into T'idel and'fextile Fark.

bb&



5,4 [ T. RE F R,4 C T O RT COJII'P.I,\" Y L I,\ T I T E D, S A I C NT

Note fonrning pnrt of Financial Stfltements fbr the 1'ear enrned 31'tNIarch 2025

51. 11. Details of'Loans irnd Aclvances grantetl that are:

(i) Repal'abtre on clernand, or
(ii) lr ithout speciff ing an)' terms or periocl of repal'ment

51. N. RELATION WITH STRUCK OFF COMP,A.NIES
(Tincrore)

Balance for the neriod ended

S.No.
Name of Struck
Off Company

Nature of
Transaction

Relationship 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

0 0 0 0 0

51. O. [leconciliation of Yearh. StoclJReceivable statememt tiled for Fund Management for the
}'ear 202{-25

({ in crore

u1

ln crore

S.No. Type of Bonrower
As on 3110312025 As on 31.ffi3l2024

Arert
0utstantlinE

'/o of
Total

Amt
Outstandins

"k of
'['otal

1 Prclmoter 0 0 0 0

2 Directors (speciti' names) 0 0 0 0

a
J KN{Ps ( specif-v naures) 0 0 0 0

4 Related parties 0 0 0 0

(Par1r.'r.vise) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0

'fhe Coirpanv has not availecl Debt or
l,oan fi'our an1' Batrker^ i-lence the tiling
ol Stock or ReceivabLes Stater-nents does

not arise.

(ii) Worli in
(iii) Store and S

iv)Finished Goods

Gross Invento
Less: Sundn, creclitors

l\et Invento

Trade Receivables

Reasons

fbr
Dilterence

o
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lr{ote ftrrmimg part of Finirnc{al Statennents for the 1'ear enderl 3n't}[arch 2{i}25

51. P. The Title Deecls,ilease Agreements of the iollori,ins lmmovahle Froperties (inclucled r-rncier

the line irem'Propertl Plant and Eqr,iipment'anci'Right of use msset')are not held in tlte;ratle olthe
compan\':

SI,
N

o"

Li
ne
Ite
m
in
B
S

Nature of
property

Totai Area
(Acres)

Gros
S

rlalu

(?)

[.let
Value
value

(<)

Title Deed
Held in Name

of

wheth
en title
deed

holder
isa

prom
oter,

direct
or or
their

Perio
d held

indica
te

range,
where
appro
priate

Reasrrn for not
being held in

name cf the Company

4
I 1

Free
Hold
Land

147.994
(Salem) Cr.

r oc

UT,

Burn
StanCard
Company
Ltd, (BSCL)

No Since
16.12.
20i 1

1)SRCL has paid an amount
of T5.78 cr"ores as stamp duty
in March 25 to ihe State Govt
for initiating Registration
process for name transfer
from BSCL to SRCL.

2 I Free Hold
Land

tt o
1

Kushal Nagar,
Karnataka

DJU L No Since
to I z
201 1

2) SRCL requeited tne Sub-Registrar, Kushal Nagar, Madikeri, Karnataka vide letter SR.CL i Mlnes 12421-22 / 041 daied

01 .j0.2A21 forchangeof ownershipinthenameof SRCL TheSub-RegistrarOffice,Kushal Nagarrepliedvicleletterdated
26lO 2A21 stating that SRCL have to contact / approach the TahsildarTaluk office, Kushalnagara

Since then we are following up with the TahsildarTaluk Office, Kushalnagara for transfer of lands in the name of SRCL.

SRCL has appointed an advocate in Kushal Nagarfor coordinating the name transfer process.

1
Lease
Hold
Land

G.O No.B53-
Red hills
l/ag nesite
and Dunite
Mines

1538.67

Only
t1/-
Only

BSCL No

Since
ta I z.
201 1

3) Subsequent to ol,.taining
the EC. the name transfer of
Lease wrli be gralted in the
name of SRC[-

4 1 Lease
Hold
La nd

G.O.Nc 51-
Jaghir
Magnesite
Mines

25A 440
- t40. ltJ
-_ j.r3?

4) The Govt. of lamii Nadu
has taken over the 246.243
acres of Lease llold Land.
TFe balarce land a,,ailable is

only 4.237 acres. The Govt. of
Tamil Nadu has not yet
corrected the Lease Hold

5 1 Lease
Hold
Land

GONo-679
AS Jaghir
llagnesite
tulines

93.450
-37 016
f,o 4.14

5) T.he Govt cf Tamil Nadu
has taken over the 37.0 1 2

acres of Lease Hoid Land
The balance land available is

only 56.438 acres. -f he Govt
of Tamil Nadu has not yet
corrected the Lease F{old
Land area

#**'q-\,,J/ :xll;;ri \ro

(ir";4;g

adi
0
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Note formimg part of Fintncial Stlltements for the J-ear ender-l3l'Ii\lnrch 2D25

As at 31't Manch,2024
sl"
No. Line

Item
in
BS

N;ature
of

pnoperty

Total ,Area

{Acres)
Gross
value

(Rs. in
crore)

Nell Value
rralu e

(Rs. in
cnore)

Title Deed
Held in

Narne of

Wlrether
titl,e deed
holder is

a
prC,m Oter,

d i rector
or their

Feriod held

inUicate
ra!'rge,
vrhere

appropri
ate

Reason for
not

being held in
name of the
Connpany

1

2

3

4

5

,1

1

1

I

1

Free
Hold
L and

Free
Hold
Land

Lease
Hold
Land

i ^^^^LEd >E

Hold
Land

Lease
Hold
Land

147.994
(Salem Tamil
Nadu)

21.81
(Kushal
Nagar,
Karnataka)

G O N0.853-
Red Hills
Magnesite
and Dunite
Mines

1538.67 acres

G.O.Nlo 5'1-
JaghirMagnesi
te Mines

250.44 acres

G O No.679-
A. S.
JaghirMagnesi
te IMines

93.450 acres

t 11

The
total
Lease
Hold
Land
shown
in Asset
Register
as one
Rupee
valrie

c. I 1

The
total
Lease
Hold
Land
shown
in Asset
Register
as one
Rupee
value

Burn
Standard
Company
ttd.
(BSCr)

BSCL

aQat

BSCL

BSCL

N'lo

lrlo

No

No

No

#

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16 12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16 122011

Since
16 12 2011

I

I

l

./d

1)SRCL has
applred for
waiver of
stamp duty to
the tune of
Rs.S 07 crore
to the
lnspector
General of
Reg istration,
Chennai
based on the
fact that the
said transfer
was betrryeen
two
Departmentsl
Administrative
Ministries of
Govt. of lndia
(Dept. of
Heavy
lndustries and
Ministry of
Steel)

2)SRCI
requested ihe
Sub-Registrar
Kushal Nagar,
Madikeri,
Karnataka
vide ietter
SRCL / Mines
t2021-221
041 dated
A110.2021 far
change of
ownership in

the name of
SRCL
The Sub-
Registrar
Office, Kushal
Nagar replied
vide letter
dated
26.10.2021
stating that
SRCL have to
contact i
approach the
TahsildarTaluk
office,
Kushalnagara

Since then we
are followinct
up with the

&da-{s-P
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lriore fonming part of Financial Statexnearts lor the 1'car cntl,ed 31't&[arch 2t]25
Ta;rsilciarTaluk
Off!ce,
Kushalnagera
for transfer oi
iands in the
name of
SRCL.
3) Subsequent
to obtaining
the EC, the
Lease w!ll be
granted in the
name of
SRCL
4) The Govt.
of Tarnil Nadu
has taken over
the 246.203
acres of Lease
Hold Land.
The balance
land available
rs only 4.237
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease
Hold Land
area
5) The Govt
of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 37 012
acres of Lease
Hold Land.
The balance
land available
is only 56.438
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease
Hold Land
area

l00



SAIL REFR"|CTO,RY COIIPANY LII'IITED, Salewt

Fiote forrning pnrt oX'Finnncinl Stilteneents for tnre vear ,endecl 31't)[tnch 2(]25

51. Q. Rzrtios as per Arnended SchetXule [Il

hr olcler to bring the unifbrmitv. the Ratios h;u'e been calculateil hased on the numerator and

denominator considered bv SAIl,.

1\

S.No. Particulars
-l1.t

N'Iarch,
2{125

31't
March,

2024

Variance
('%)

Reasons o'
r ariamce for

an.l chnrrge h1-

more thfln
25\/n

1 Clur:ent ratio
( C' un' e nt A,vs e t.v, () urr e n I L i ct b iI i ti e s 1

6.27 : I 6.56 : 1 _4t:th

2. Debt-l3quiti,' Ratio SRCI- does not have unv Debt
a Debt Service coveraqe Ratio SRCL does not har,:e anv l)ebt

4" Return on F, clnity('/o )

0,'et pro.;fit ciier lariAt'el'uge liet Ll-orllt)
t1% 1 loio ].Ji1

5. Inventcirl' T'urnover ratio (no. ol dal-s)

Clt, e r u ge [nt: e nt o t'],,' Re v e n t t e ./i' ct ttt

Otrtercrlionl'*3 65

169 da-vs i39 da"vs 22o/,

6. Trade Receivable Turnover ratio (rto. of
da"vs)

(:1teruge Trucle lleceivub| e s:i Revenue,/ront

Operation)'F365

108 da"vs 83 da1-s 30%

Increased -

Sales

compieteci &
claimed aiier

Set cor-npie-tion

7. Trade Pay'able f'ut'nol'er ratio (r-ro. of dai's)

(Areruge Trutle Puyublei' Put'chtts'e o.f'

Goocis)*365

31 da1's 19 dals 68o/o
Increase- l)ue

to Cash crunch

8. Net Capital Turnover r:rtio
( Rer e rru e .fi' ont ( )p e r o t i ons'' [Irorkin g

Ccrpitcl)

1.02 : 1 0.75 : 1 -1D"r 0
Reduction in

Fired Deposit

9. Net profit ratio(?i,)
(itiet profit (r er lLr:r," Rererurc fi'ont

Operolions)

llnta t:70 -12%

10. Return on Capital timplo-ved (%)

(Etrt'ning.r be/dre hrterasl cl Tcx'' ('ttpitii
Entpl14'etl)

11% 1t% Ii1

11 Retrirn on lnvestment (%)

( In c o n t e ge n e r o t e (l .fi' o m inv e.s I e d /il n cl'v,"

Av e r a ge inv e s' t e il 1: t Lnd 
"s )

J'heLe is no Inrestmer-rl olthe
Cornpanl

o
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5.1fi trl.tr F R.,'t C T O R Y C O lI PANY L Ll'{ I T E D, S u I e w

liote fonming pant of Financian Stattemrents for [he vear endecl3[otN'larch 2025

51. R. (i) No flncns hirle been adr,'ancecl or loaned or inrrestecl (either f-rom br,rrrouecl firnds or securilies

premium or anv other sources or kind of luncls) bi,-the Companv to or in an)'person(s) or entitl(rcst.

including lbreign en tities ('the intermecliar"ies')" rviththe uttclerstaitcling. w'hether recortled in ul"iting

or other\\'ise. Ilaat the intermecliarl'shall. u'hether. directll or inciirectlv lend or inrest in other iersons

or entities iclentiilecl in an1' manner r.r,ltatsctel'er b1' or on behall ol the Companl' ('the l-l'ltimat*

tsetiellciar:ics') orprovide anv -glrari.llttce. secltritr orthe like on behallthe L.lltimate Benet'jciaries.

(ii) No fr-rnds have been receir,ed b1' the Corupanl' tionr an--v person(s) or errtitl'(ies)" including fbreign

entities ('the Funding Parties')" rvith the under:star-rding. rvhether recortied in rvriting or othei"r.r,'ise. tl-rat

the Clornpanr shall. rvhether directll' or indirectlv. iend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in an-n- manner rvhatsoever b,v or on behalf of the Funding Partl' 1'Liltimate Benef-iciaries') ot provide

an.v guarantee. security-or the like on behalf ol the Ultimate Bcnehciaries.

52. Regrouping : Prerrior:s )'eilr ligures have been rearranged/regrouped rvher.:r'et necessar,v"

53. The Figures appearin-9 in the Financial Statements have been givetr in rupees ({) rounded off ttl Crores

(r,vith tr,vo decimal).

1?0


